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         1                    P R O C E E D I N G S



         2           MR. WARDEN:  GOOD AFTERNOON, YOUR HONOR.



         3           THE COURT:  GOOD AFTERNOON, MR. WARDEN.



         4                 CONTINUED CROSS-EXAMINATION



         5  BY MR. WARDEN:



         6  Q.   GOOD AFTERNOON, MR. BARKSDALE.



         7  A.   HELLO AFTERNOON.



         8  Q.   DID YOU DISCUSS YOUR TESTIMONY WITH ANYONE DURING THE



         9  LUNCHEON RECESS?



        10  A.   ONLY MY ATTORNEY FOR A COUPLE OF MINUTES.



        11  Q.   THANK YOU.



        12           WE WERE TALKING ABOUT COMPAQ WHEN WE BROKE FOR



        13  LUNCH.  DO YOU RECALL?



        14  A.   YES, SIR.



        15  Q.   IS IT YOUR UNDERSTANDING THAT COMPAQ ENTERED INTO A



        16  PROMOTIONAL AGREEMENT WITH AOL IN THE SPRING OF 1995?



        17  A.   I DON'T KNOW THAT.



        18  Q.   IS IT YOUR UNDERSTANDING THAT COMPAQ'S DECISION TO



        19  REMOVE THE INTERNET EXPLORER AND MSN ICONS WAS MOTIVATED



        20  BY A DESIRE TO PLEASE AOL AND HAD NOTHING TO DO WITH



        21  NETSCAPE?



        22  A.   I'M NOT AWARE OF THAT.



        23  Q.   IS IT YOUR UNDERSTANDING THAT COMPAQ CONCLUDED ON ITS



        24  OWN THAT IN ORDER TO PROMOTE AND FEATURE AOL AND ITS



        25  DESKTOP ICON, IT WOULD REMOVE BOTH THE INTERNET EXPLORER�
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         1  AND THE NAVIGATOR ICONS FROM THE DESKTOP AND MOVE THEM TO



         2  THE START MENU?



         3  A.   I'M NOT AWARE OF THAT.



         4  Q.   AND IS IT YOUR UNDERSTANDING THAT THE OBJECTION TO



         5  COMPAQ'S PLAN TO PUT NETSCAPE SPRYNET ON THE DESKTOP CAME



         6  UP FROM MICROSOFT BUT FROM AOL?



         7  A.   I'M NOT AWARE OF THAT.  I DON'T KNOW WHAT THE DEAL



         8  WAS.  I WAS JUST TESTIFYING WHAT I KNOW ABOUT THE



         9  COMPAQ THING.



        10  Q.   AND IS IT, TO YOUR KNOWLEDGE, A FACT THAT MICROSOFT'S



        11  PROMOTIONAL AGREEMENT WITH COMPAQ DID NOT COME UNTIL MAY



        12  OF 1996?



        13  A.   THAT WOULD SEEM THAT'S CONSISTENT WITH WHAT I SAID



        14  HERE.



        15  Q.   OKAY.  IS IT YOUR UNDERSTANDING THAT MICROSOFT'S



        16  AGREEMENT WITH COMPAQ SAID ABSOLUTELY NOTHING ABOUT THE



        17  PLACEMENT OF THE NAVIGATOR ICON AND CERTAINLY DID NOT



        18  REQUIRE COMPAQ TO REMOVE THAT ICON FROM THE DESKTOP?



        19  A.   I HAVE SAID THAT.



        20  Q.   OKAY.  ARE YOU FAMILIAR WITH THE COMPAQ ARMADA LINE



        21  OF NOTEBOOK COMPUTERS?



        22  A.   I HAVE HEARD OF IT.  I DON'T KNOW THAT I COULD



        23  ADEQUATELY DESCRIBE IT.



        24  Q.   HAS THE NETSCAPE NAVIGATOR ICON EVER APPEARED ON



        25  ARMADA DESKTOPS?�
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         1  A.   I DON'T REMEMBER.



         2  Q.   IS IT, IN FACT, TRUE THAT THE NAVIGATOR ICON WAS ON



         3  THE ARMADA DESKTOP UNTIL JANUARY OF THIS YEAR?



         4  A.   IT MAY BE.  I DON'T KNOW.  I HAVE LISTED IN HERE THE



         5  ONES I AM AWARE OF AND WHERE THOSE ICONS ARE.



         6  Q.   GOING TO PAGE 90, PARAGRAPH 168, OF YOUR DIRECT



         7  TESTIMONY, WHICH PRESENTS NCR AS AN EXAMPLE OF CERTAIN



         8  MICROSOFT CONDUCT.  DO YOU SEE THAT?  PURPORTED MICROSOFT



         9  CONDUCT.  DO YOU SEE THAT, MR. BARKSDALE?



        10  A.   YES, SIR, I DO.



        11           I APOLOGIZE.  I THOUGHT YOU WERE SPEAKING TO THE



        12  JUDGE.



        13  Q.   WHAT IS THE BASIS OF YOUR KNOWLEDGE OF THE CONTENT OF



        14  THE MICROSOFT NCR MARKET DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT?



        15  A.   IN MY EXHIBIT, I HAVE AN E-MAIL THAT I WAS MADE AWARE



        16  OF THAT DESCRIBED IN THE LISTED ITEMS THOSE THAT ARE



        17  IDENTIFIED HERE.



        18  Q.   AND HAVE YOU SEEN THE AGREEMENT ITSELF?



        19  A.   NO, I HAVEN'T.



        20  Q.   IS IT YOUR UNDERSTANDING THAT UNDER THE AGREEMENT,



        21  NCR WAS NOT PERMITTED TO PUT A NAVIGATOR ICON ON THE



        22  WINDOWS DESKTOP?



        23  A.   AS I HAVE IDENTIFIED IN THE AGREEMENT OR THE



        24  INFORMATION WAS GIVEN TO ME WHICH IS ALL I TESTIFIED TO IN



        25  THIS IS I WAS TOLD THESE THINGS AND I PUT THEM DOWN HERE,�
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         1  AND I PASS THEM TO, BASICALLY, THE PEOPLE WHO ASKED FOR



         2  THEM AT THE DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE FOR THEM TO INVESTIGATE



         3  THESE THINGS.  I CAN'T INVESTIGATE CONTRACTS.  I DON'T



         4  HAVE ACCESS TO CONTRACTS.



         5  Q.   WHAT DO YOU MEAN WHEN YOU SAY THAT NCR WAS NOT



         6  PERMITTED TO LOAD NETSCAPE NAVIGATOR?



         7  A.   YOU MEAN IN A BOOTUP PROCESS?



         8  Q.   YES.



         9  A.   YOU ARE NOT PERMITTED TO LOAD THE NETSCAPE NAVIGATOR



        10  IN THE BOOTUP PROCESS.  THAT'S WHAT WAS TOLD TO ME.



        11  Q.   WHAT DOES THAT MEAN?



        12  A.   WHEN THE MACHINE BOOTS UP, IN THE FIRST SCREEN IT DID



        13  NOT ALLOW YOU TO LOAD THE NETSCAPE NAVIGATOR, THAT YOU



        14  WOULD THEN HAVE TO GO TO A SEPARATE EFFORT IN AN



        15  ADDITIONAL EFFORT ON THE PART OF THE USER TO LOAD THE



        16  NETSCAPE NAVIGATOR.  THAT'S WHAT THE DOCUMENT PURPORTED TO



        17  ME, AND THAT'S WHAT I PUT IN MY TESTIMONY.



        18  Q.   ISN'T IT TRUE, IN FACT, THAT MICROSOFT'S CONTRACT



        19  WITH NCR, IN NO WAY, PRECLUDED NCR FROM HAVING A NAVIGATOR



        20  ICON ON THE DESKTOP?



        21  A.   AS I TOLD YOU, I DON'T HAVE THE CONTRACT.



        22  Q.   AND ISN'T IT ALSO TRUE THAT IF THAT ICON WERE THERE



        23  AND A USER AT ANY TIME CLICKED ON IT, NETSCAPE NAVIGATOR



        24  WOULD BECOME THAT USER'S DEFAULT WEB-BROWSING SOFTWARE?



        25  A.   THE POINT IS, NCR WOULD BE VERY UNLIKELY TO DO THAT.�
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         1  Q.   ISN'T IT ALSO TRUE THAT MICROSOFT'S LICENSE



         2  AGREEMENTS, IN GENERAL, WITH OEM'S FOR WINDOWS 95 AND



         3  WINDOWS 98, IN NO WAY, LIMIT THE OEM'S ABILITY TO MAKE



         4  NETSCAPE'S WEB-BROWSING SOFTWARE THE DEFAULT WEB-BROWSING



         5  SOFTWARE?



         6  A.   THEY DO TO THE EXTENT THAT THEY ALSO HAVE TO HAVE IE



         7  ON THE SCREEN; THEREFORE, THEY GREATLY BIAS THE USER AND



         8  ALSO THE OEM, WHO WOULD BE VERY UNLIKELY TO DO THAT.



         9  Q.   BUT, IN FACT, THERE IS NO CONTRACTUAL PROVISION THAT



        10  PURPORTS TO PREVENT THE OEM FROM DOING THAT, IS THERE?



        11  A.   I NEVER SAID THAT THEY DID.



        12  Q.   OKAY.  AND IN CONNECTION WITH YOUR REPRESENTATION



        13  ABOUT TEN LINES DOWN--I'M SORRY, YOUR REFERENCE ABOUT TEN



        14  LINES DOWN, TO NCR'S HOME PAGE--DO YOU SEE THAT?  "WE WERE



        15  TOLD"--



        16  A.   YES, I SEE THAT.



        17  Q.   OKAY.  DOES NETSCAPE HAVE AGREEMENTS UNDER WHICH IT



        18  PROHIBITS A WEB SITE FROM DISPLAYING A DOWNLOAD INTERNET



        19  EXPLORER BUTTON IF IT HAS A DOWNLOAD NETSCAPE NAVIGATOR



        20  BUTTON?



        21  A.   I DON'T KNOW THAT WE DO.  WE MAY, BUT IT WOULD BE ON



        22  A BASIS THAT WOULD NOT BE PROHIBITED.  MANY WEB SITES HAVE



        23  TWO PAGES IDENTICAL TO ONE THAT DISPLAYS FOR INTERNET



        24  EXPLORER AND ONE THAT DISPLAYS NETSCAPE NAVIGATOR.



        25  CERTAINLY, WE WOULDN'T PRECLUDE IT IF THEY WANTED TO DO IT�
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         1  ON THEIR ALTERNATE VERSION, WHICH IS THE WAY MOST WEB



         2  SITES OPERATE.



         3  Q.   OKAY.  AND VICE VERSA?



         4  A.   BUT NOT IN THE CASE OF NCR.  THEY WERE TOLD, AS A



         5  COMPANY, THEY COULDN'T PUT IT ON THEIR CORPORATE WEB SITE,



         6  AND THAT'S WHAT I UNDERSTAND, AND THAT'S WHAT I



         7  REPRESENTED IN MY TESTIMONY.



         8  Q.   EVEN AN ALTERNATE VERSION?



         9  A.   EVEN AN ALTERNATE VERSION, THAT THAT WOULD BE LOOKED



        10  UPON UNKINDLY BY MICROSOFT.  THAT'S WHAT THE DOCUMENT



        11  SAID.



        12  Q.   NOW, GOING TO PARAGRAPH 173, WHICH HAS TWO LINES AT



        13  THE BOTTOM OF PAGE 91 AND THEN GOES TO 92.



        14  A.   CORRECT.



        15  Q.   YOU LIST A NUMBER OF OEM'S THERE.  IBM, GATEWAY,



        16  SONY, APPLE, NEC.



        17  A.   YES.



        18  Q.   FUJITSU, HEWLETT-PACKARD.



        19  A.   YES.



        20  Q.   ISN'T IT CORRECT THAT ALL THESE OEM'S ARE SHIPPING



        21  NETSCAPE WEB-BROWSING SOFTWARE WITH THEIR PRODUCTS, THEIR



        22  PCS?



        23  A.   IN THE WAY IN WHICH I MENTIONED, AS AN ADDITIONAL



        24  DISK OR IN OTHER WAYS THEY SHIP IT IN CONJUNCTION WITH OR



        25  BESIDE, BUT DON'T HAVE A BROWSER--I MEAN, DON'T HAVE AN�
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         1  ICON ON THE DESKTOP.



         2           AND ALSO, MOST OF THESE REPRESENT THE SMALLER



         3  LINES OF THESE COMPANIES' DISTRIBUTION.  BUT OTHER THAN



         4  THAT, THEY CAN SHIP IT IN THESE LIMITED WAYS.



         5  Q.   THEY DO SHIP IT IN THESE LIMITED WAYS?



         6  A.   THAT'S WHAT I REPRESENT IN MY TESTIMONY.



         7  Q.   NOW, IN EACH OF THE BULLET POINTS THAT I REFERRED TO,



         8  FROM IBM TO HEWLETT-PACKARD--



         9  A.   CORRECT.



        10  Q.   --EXCEPT GATEWAY, YOU USED THE WORD "OFFERS."



        11           WHEN YOU SAY "OFFERS," DO YOU MEAN THAT THE



        12  NETSCAPE WEB-BROWSER SOFTWARE IS INCLUDED WHEN THE PRODUCT



        13  IS SHIPPED?



        14  A.   IN EACH CASE, I HAVE TRIED TO INDICATE HOW IT IS



        15  OFFERED, AND IT IS DIFFERENT, FOR THE MOST PART, ONE TO



        16  THE OTHER.



        17  Q.   ALL RIGHT.



        18  A.   I TRIED TO INDICATE, LIKE, IN THE CASE OF THE IBM,



        19  THEY OFFER THE BROWSER WITH APTIVA AND THINKPAD LINES, BUT



        20  WITHOUT A DESKTOP ICON.



        21  Q.   OKAY.  LET'S JUST STOP AND TAKE IBM AS AN EXAMPLE.



        22           WHEN YOU SAY "OFFERS," DO YOU MEAN THAT THEY



        23  INCLUDE NETSCAPE BROWSERS IN THE PRODUCT AS SHIPPED?



        24  A.   IF, BY THAT, YOU MEAN INCLUDING THE PERIPHERAL DISK



        25  DRIVES AND OTHER CD-ROMS THAT WOULD GO WITH IT, YES, THAT�
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         1  WOULD BE IT IN MOST CASES.



         2  Q.   AND THAT'S TRUE OF SONY, APPLE, NEC, FUJITSU AND



         3  HEWLETT-PACKARD?



         4  A.   YES.



         5  Q.   NOW, LET'S GO TO IBM AGAIN.  WHY DOESN'T IBM HAVE A



         6  NAVIGATOR ICON ON THE DESKTOP?



         7  A.   WELL, THE REAL ANSWER TO THAT IS YOU WOULD HAVE TO



         8  ASK IBM.  IT'S MY UNDERSTANDING THAT THEY DIDN'T WANT TO



         9  UPSET MICROSOFT.



        10  Q.   BUT YOU'RE NOT SUGGESTING THAT MICROSOFT'S LICENSE



        11  AGREEMENT PROHIBITS IBM FROM PUTTING THAT ICON ON THE



        12  DESKTOP, DO YOU?



        13  A.   AS I HAVE SAID AND INDICATED IN HERE IN REFERENCE TO



        14  THINGS LIKE THE PC WEEK ARTICLE WHERE THEY ACTUALLY TALKED



        15  TO SEVEN DIFFERENT PC OEM'S, THEY INDICATED OUT OF FEAR OR



        16  OTHER REASONS THEY DECIDED TO NOT UPSET MICROSOFT.  THAT'S



        17  MY REPRESENTATION HERE.  I DO NOT CLAIM THAT IT WAS



        18  CONTRACTUAL AGREEMENTS.



        19  Q.   HOW MANY COPIES OF NETSCAPE'S WEB-BROWSING SOFTWARE



        20  HAVE BEEN DISTRIBUTED BY IBM ON ITS APTIVA AND THINKPAD



        21  LINES?



        22  A.   DISTRIBUTED OR USED BY THE USER OF THE PRODUCT.



        23  Q.   DISTRIBUTED?



        24  A.   WELL, UNDERSTAND NOW, IF THEY DON'T HAVE AN ICON,



        25  IT'S LESS LIKELY THAT THE USER WOULD USE IT, SO IT'S OF�
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         1  FAR LESS VALUE.  BUT, IF THEY DISTRIBUTE IT WITH THAT



         2  PRODUCT AS A SEPARATE CD-ROM WITH IT, HOWEVER MANY THEY



         3  DISTRIBUTED, THAT'S HOW MANY CD-ROMS, GIVE OR TAKE, THEY



         4  WOULD ON THESE PRODUCTS.



         5  Q.   YOU DON'T KNOW THE NUMBER; IS THAT RIGHT?



         6  A.   NO.



         7  Q.   NOW, WHEN YOU SAY IT GOES OUT ON A CD-ROM, IS THAT A



         8  SEPARATE CD-ROM THAT SAYS NETSCAPE NAVIGATOR OR



         9  COMMUNICATOR ON IT, OR IS IT PRE-INSTALLED?



        10  A.   IT WOULD BE DIFFERENT WITH DIFFERENT PRODUCTS.  IN



        11  SOME CASES, THEY HAVE A PACKAGE OF VARIOUS ITEMS THAT THEY



        12  OFFER WITH THE PC.  IN ADDITION TO OUR PRODUCT, THEY MAY



        13  HAVE MANY OTHER PRODUCTS THAT THEY PROVIDE WITH IT.  AND



        14  IN THOSE CASES, IT WOULD NOT SAY THE "NETSCAPE NAVIGATOR"



        15  IN THAT CASE.  IT WOULD JUST SAY LIKE A "PLUS PACK" OR AN



        16  "EXTRA PACK" OR A "BONUS PACK" OR SOMETHING OF THAT



        17  NATURE.



        18  Q.   AND THE CONSUMER CAN INSTALL THAT, IF HE OR SHE



        19  WISHES, WITHOUT CLICKING ON AN ICON; ISN'T THAT CORRECT?



        20  A.   THAT WOULD BE CORRECT, YES.



        21  Q.   GOING TO GATEWAY, DOES GATEWAY HAVE ITS OWN ISP



        22  SIGNUP SEQUENCE FOR WINDOWS 98?



        23  A.   I DON'T KNOW.  THEY MAY.  THEY USED TO HAVE A



        24  SEPARATE SEQUENCE, BUT I DON'T KNOW THAT THEY DID THAT



        25  WITH WINDOWS 98.�
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         1  Q.   WHEN YOU KNOW THAT THEY HAD A SEPARATE SIGNUP



         2  SEQUENCE, DID IT OCCUR BEFORE WINDOWS WAS FULLY LOADED?



         3  A.   IF YOU'RE GOING BACK TO WINDOWS 95--



         4  Q.   I'M GOING TO THE PERIOD--



         5  A.   --I BELIEVE IT DID.



         6  Q.   AND THAT SIGNUP SEQUENCE APPEARED BEFORE MICROSOFT'S



         7  INTERNET CONNECTION WIZARD NOW IN '98?



         8  A.   I DON'T KNOW THAT IT OCCURS NOW AFTER WINDOWS 98 OR



         9  NOT.



        10  Q.   YOU'RE NOT AWARE WHETHER OR NOT GATEWAY'S SIGNUP



        11  SEQUENCE FOR WINDOWS 98 WILL OFFER EVERY GATEWAY USER A



        12  CHOICE BETWEEN INTERNET EXPLORER AND NETSCAPE'S



        13  WEB-BROWSING SOFTWARE?



        14  A.   THAT'S NOT MY UNDERSTANDING.



        15  Q.   LET'S GO TO PAGE 93, PARAGRAPH 175.  AGAIN, THAT



        16  PARAGRAPH STARTS AT THE BOTTOM OF 92.



        17  A.   I HAVE IT.



        18  Q.   AND IT DISCUSSES INTUIT; IS THAT CORRECT?



        19  A.   YES, IT DOES.



        20  Q.   YOU SAY, "INTUIT NEEDED AN EMBEDDABLE BROWSER FOR ITS



        21  QUICKEN PRODUCT."  WHAT IS QUICKEN?



        22  A.   QUICKEN IS A VERY POPULAR COMPUTER APPLICATION THAT



        23  INTUIT HAS MARKETED NOW FOR A NUMBER OF YEARS THAT DOES



        24  BOTH PERSONAL AND BUSINESS ACCOUNTING AND BOOKKEEPING.



        25  Q.   NOW, IN THE COURSE OF THE EVENTS YOU DESCRIBE IN 175�
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         1  AND FOLLOWING PARAGRAPHS WITH RESPECT TO INTUIT, DID



         2  NETSCAPE WANT TO HAVE A GOOD RELATIONSHIP WITH INTUIT?



         3  A.   YES, WE DID.



         4  Q.   AND DID YOU BELIEVE THAT IT WOULD BE BENEFICIAL TO BE



         5  ABLE TO SAY THAT INTUIT HAD CHOSEN YOUR SOFTWARE OVER



         6  MICROSOFT'S?



         7  A.   WE WOULD HAVE BELIEVED IT BENEFICIAL, REGARDLESS OF



         8  WHETHER THEY SAID THEY CHOSE IT OVER MICROSOFT'S.



         9  Q.   AND DOESN'T AN INTUIT EXECUTIVE SIT ON NETSCAPE'S



        10  BOARD?



        11  A.   DOES NOW.  DIDN'T THEN.  HE'S BEEN ON OUR BOARD FOR A



        12  MONTH.



        13  Q.   ABOUT SEVEN LINES OR EIGHT LINES DOWN ON PAGE 93 FROM



        14  THE TOP, YOU SAY, "NETSCAPE OFFERED INTUIT SEVERAL



        15  TECHNICAL OPTIONS"--DO YOU SEE THAT?



        16  A.   YES.



        17  Q.   --"THAT INTUIT AGREED WOULD MEET ITS NEEDS."



        18  A.   YES.



        19  Q.   NOW, OVER WHAT TIME PERIOD WERE YOU IN NEGOTIATIONS



        20  WITH INTUIT?



        21  A.   ME, PERSONALLY, OR THE COMPANY?



        22  Q.   THE COMPANY.



        23  A.   OVER A PERIOD OF SEVERAL MONTHS PRIOR TO THEIR--PRIOR



        24  TO THE SUMMER, MID SUMMERISH OF '97.



        25  Q.   AND WHAT WAS THE DEGREE OF YOUR PERSONAL�
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         1  PARTICIPATION?



         2  A.   I ATTENDED, BEST I RECALL, TWO MEETINGS WITH THE



         3  EXECUTIVES AND THE TECHNICAL STAFFS FROM INTUIT.



         4  Q.   AND DO YOU RECALL APPROXIMATELY HOW LONG EACH OF



         5  THOSE MEETINGS LASTED?



         6  A.   I REMEMBER ONE OF THEM BEING RATHER EXTENSIVE OVER



         7  LUNCH, AND A COUPLE OF HOURS AFTER LUNCH WOULD BE THE



         8  LONGER ONE.



         9  Q.   AND THE OTHER ONE?



        10  A.   SEEMS TO ME IT WAS AN HOUR, MAYBE TWO.



        11  Q.   OKAY.  WHAT WERE THE SEVERAL TECHNICAL OPTIONS



        12  OFFERED INTUIT BY NETSCAPE?



        13  A.   WE LOOKED AT DIFFERENT WAYS OF PERFORMING THE



        14  APPLICATION QUICKEN ON AN INTERNET OR IN CONJUNCTION WITH



        15  AN INTERNET CONNECTIVITY IN CONJUNCTION WITH OUR BROWSER,



        16  THAT WE FELT LIKE WERE GOOD TECHNICAL SOLUTIONS.  A COUPLE



        17  OF THEM WERE QUITE ELEGANT, WE THOUGHT, BUT JUST



        18  DIFFERENT--JUST FOUR, FIVE DIFFERENT WAYS DOING WHAT THEY



        19  WANTED DONE.



        20  Q.   ISN'T IT TRUE THAT THEY GAVE YOU THEIR TECHNICAL



        21  REQUIREMENTS IN AUGUST OF 1996, AND YOU ALL DID NOT EVEN



        22  PROPOSE A SOLUTION UNTIL OCTOBER OF 1996?



        23  A.   IT'S POSSIBLE.  THAT'S A MONTH.



        24  Q.   ISN'T IT TRUE ALSO THAT ALTHOUGH INTUIT SAID THESE



        25  OPTIONS WOULD MEET ITS NEEDS, YOU WERE FORCED TO TELL THEM�
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         1  THAT YOUR ENGINEERS COULDN'T DELIVER ON THE OPTIONS?



         2  A.   I THINK THAT'S WHAT I SAID EARLIER, THAT WE WERE



         3  PROPOSING ALTERNATIVES TO THAT WHICH WE FELT WERE GOOD,



         4  AND IN SOME CASES THEY THOUGHT WERE GOOD, AND OTHER CASES



         5  THEY REJECTED THEM.



         6  Q.   NOW, ISN'T IT TRUE THAT EVEN BY MARCH 1997, YOU HAD



         7  STILL NOT COME UP WITH A TECHNICAL SOLUTION THAT MET



         8  INTUIT'S NEEDS?



         9  A.   WE HAD COME UP WITH A TECHNICAL SOLUTION.  I THINK



        10  THERE WERE STILL SOME DEBATE ABOUT SOME OF THE TECHNICAL



        11  REQUIREMENTS THAT THEY WANTED INCLUDED.



        12  Q.   AND ISN'T IT ALSO TRUE THAT INTUIT CONCLUDED THAT



        13  MICROSOFT'S SOFTWARE WAS SUPERIOR BECAUSE IT OFFERED A



        14  HIGHLY COMPONENTIZED SET OF FUNCTIONS FROM WHICH INTUIT



        15  COULD PICK AND CHOOSE TO ADD THE FUNCTIONALITY THEY WANTED



        16  TO THEIR APPLICATIONS?



        17  A.   I THINK IT'S LIKE THE AOL DEAL.  THAT WAS A FACTOR.



        18  THEY LIKED THAT FACTOR.  THE ENGINEERS APPRECIATED THAT



        19  FACTOR, BUT THAT WAS NOT THE OVERALL DETERMINING FACTOR IN



        20  THE DEAL.



        21  Q.   AND DESPITE THAT FACTOR, THEN, INTUIT'S MANAGERS



        22  STILL WANTED TO GIVE YOU THE BUSINESS, BUT YOU COULDN'T



        23  DELIVER; ISN'T THAT TRUE?



        24  A.   NO, SIR.  AS I SAID, THEY WERE LOOKING AT A LOT OF



        25  THINGS, AND ONE OF THE THINGS THEY WERE LOOKING AT WAS�
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         1  DISTRIBUTION OF THE PRODUCT, AND MICROSOFT MADE AN OFFER



         2  THAT WAS A VERY GOOD OFFER TO THEM, INCLUDING THE



         3  TECHNICAL ASPECTS, BUT ALSO INCLUDING THE ABILITY FOR THE



         4  FIRST TIME, WHICH IS SOMETHING QUICKEN OR INTUIT HAD



         5  ALWAYS WANTED WITH QUICKEN, WAS TO EMBED CERTAIN QUICKEN



         6  FUNCTIONS WITHIN THE MICROSOFT OPERATING SYSTEM WHICH GAVE



         7  THEM A REAL LEG UP FOR WINDOWS USERS, AND THAT WAS



         8  SOMETHING THAT WE COULD NOT OFFER.



         9  Q.   IN FACT, MR. BARKSDALE, EVEN AFTER INTUIT SELECTED



        10  MICROSOFT'S WEB-BROWSING SOFTWARE TO EMBED IN QUICKEN,



        11  DIDN'T THEY MEET WITH YOU ONCE MORE TO GIVE YOU ANOTHER



        12  CHANCE?



        13  A.   THEY MAY HAVE.  I DON'T REMEMBER EXACTLY THE SEQUENCE



        14  OF EVENTS THERE.  WE MET WITH THEM SEVERAL TIMES WITH THEM



        15  SINCE THEN ON THIS AND OTHER MATTERS.



        16           MR. WARDEN:  YOUR HONOR, I OFFER WHAT HAS BEEN



        17  PRE-MARKED AS DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT 57, WHICH IS TWO



        18  E-MAILS.  THE ONE AT THE TOP OF THE EXHIBIT IS DATED



        19  WEDNESDAY, AUGUST 14, 1996.  IT'S FROM MIKE HOMER, AND



        20  IT'S TO BTURPIN WITH A COPY TO JBSTAFF.



        21  BY MR. WARDEN:



        22  Q.   WHO IS BTURPIN, MR. BARKSDALE?



        23  A.   IT WILL BE BILL TURPIN, WHO IS ONE OF OUR PRODUCT



        24  MANAGERS.



        25  Q.   AND JBSTAFF IS YOUR STAFF?�
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         1  A.   MY IMMEDIATE REPORTS.



         2  Q.   THE TOP EXECUTIVES OF THE COMPANY?



         3  A.   CORRECT.



         4  Q.   THE SECOND E-MAIL IS ALSO TO MR. TURPIN FROM DEBBY



         5  MEREDITH, DATED 11TH OF AUGUST 1996.



         6           WHO IS MS. MEREDITH?



         7  A.   DEBBY MEREDITH WAS THEN A PRODUCT MANAGER IN OUR



         8  PRODUCT DEVELOPMENT GROUP.



         9           THE COURT:  BOTH OF THEM ARE EXHIBIT 57?



        10           MR. WARDEN:  THEY ARE ONE DOCUMENT, YOUR HONOR.



        11           MR. BOIES:  NO OBJECTION, YOUR HONOR.



        12           THE COURT:  DEFENDANT'S 57 IS ADMITTED.



        13                         (DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT NO. 57 WAS



        14                          ADMITTED INTO EVIDENCE.)



        15  BY MR. WARDEN:



        16  Q.   NOW, WHAT WAS MIKE HOMER'S JOB IN AUGUST OF 1996?



        17  A.   IN AUGUST OF '96, HE WOULD HAVE BEEN HEAD OF



        18  MARKETING FOR THE COMPANY.



        19  Q.   DO YOU SEE THE STATEMENT AT THE BOTTOM OF THE FIRST



        20  PARAGRAPH OF TEXT, WHICH SAYS, "DOING A GOOD JOB WITH



        21  ISV'S WILL REQUIRE A CHANGE TO OUR PRODUCT DEVELOPMENT



        22  PROCESS BECAUSE WE WILL HAVE TO MAKE THE NEEDS OF THE



        23  ISV'S AN IMPORTANT PRIORITY AS WE DEVELOP THE PRODUCT"?



        24           WAS MR. HOMER IN A POSITION TO EVALUATE THE



        25  SUBJECT DISCUSSED IN THAT SENTENCE?�
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         1  A.   HE WOULD HAVE SOME KNOWLEDGE OF IT.



         2  Q.   AND AT THAT TIME, AUGUST 1996, HOW MANY PEOPLE WITHIN



         3  NETSCAPE WERE ASSIGNED TO WORKING WITH ISV'S?



         4  A.   I DON'T KNOW EXACTLY.  IT WOULD BE A FEW TENS OF



         5  PEOPLE.



         6  Q.   AND HOW MANY ENGINEERS WERE DEDICATED TO WORKING WITH



         7  ISV'S?



         8  A.   PROBABLY A COUPLE OF DOZEN.  IT WOULD BE INCLUDED IN



         9  THE OVERALL DEVELOPER RELATIONS GROUP THAT WE HAD THAT



        10  WORRIED ABOUT ISV'S AS WELL AS SOME OTHER TYPES OF



        11  DEVELOPERS.



        12  Q.   WELL, IF WE DID IT ON THE EQUIVALENT OF FULL



        13  POSITIONS, HOW MANY FULL POSITIONS IN ENGINEERING WOULD



        14  HAVE BEEN DEVOTED TO THIS?



        15  A.   I DON'T KNOW.  I WOULD HAVE TO LOOK IT UP.  SEVERAL.



        16  Q.   AND INTUIT WAS AN ISV, WAS IT NOT?



        17  A.   IT WOULD BE REGARDED AS THAT, YES.



        18  Q.   AND MR. HOMER SUGGESTS IN THE SENTENCE THAT I JUST



        19  READ, DID HE NOT, THAT AT THAT TIME THE NEEDS OF ISV'S



        20  WERE NOT AN IMPORTANT PRIORITY AT NETSCAPE?



        21  A.   I DON'T THINK HE SAYS THAT.  I READ IT AS HE WANTS TO



        22  MAKE IT A MORE IMPORTANT PRIORITY.  IT WAS CERTAINLY A



        23  PRIORITY OF THE COMPANY.  WE HAD A LOT OF RELATIONS WITH A



        24  LOT OF DEVELOPERS.



        25  Q.   ALL RIGHT.  LET'S GO TO THE NEXT PARAGRAPH, "BILL�
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         1  CAMPBELL CALLED ME ABOUT THREE WEEKS AGO"--WHO IS BILL



         2  CAMPBELL?



         3  A.   BILL CAMPBELL, THEN, WOULD HAVE BEEN THE CEO OF



         4  INTUIT.



         5  Q.   --"AND ASKED ME TO COME OVER AND MEET WITH THEIR



         6  ENGINEERING COUNSEL, THEIR SENIOR ENGINEERING MANAGERS,



         7  BECAUSE MICROSOFT HAD DONE A GOOD JOB OF CONVINCING THEM



         8  OF THEIR INTERNET VISION FOR IE 4.0 AND BEYOND.  THE



         9  PRIMARY APPEAL OF THIS WAS THAT MS HAD PROMISED



        10  THEM"--THAT'S MICROSOFT--"A HIGHLY COMPONENTIZED SET OF



        11  FUNCTIONS THAT THEY COULD PICK AND CHOOSE FROM TO ADD



        12  NETWORK FUNCTIONALITY TO ALL OF THE INTUIT APPLICATIONS."



        13           AND YOU WERE NOT OFFERING THEM A HIGHLY



        14  COMPONENTIZED SET OF FUNCTIONS, WERE YOU?



        15  A.   THIS IS VERY SIMILAR TO THE AOL SITUATION.  WE WERE



        16  WILLING TO DO THAT IN RETURN FOR AN AGREEMENT.



        17  Q.   LET'S GO ON TO THE NEXT PARAGRAPH.  HE WENT OVER



        18  THERE AGAIN ABOUT TWO WEEKS AGO, AND GOING ON TO THE THIRD



        19  SENTENCE, "WHAT I LEARNED WAS THAT THEY PREFERRED TO WORK



        20  WITH US BUT FELT LIKE THEY DID NOT HAVE ACCESS TO KEY



        21  PEOPLE WHO WERE WILLING TO LISTEN TO THEIR INPUT,



        22  PARTICULARLY FROM OUR ENGINEERING TEAM, AND WHO WERE



        23  WILLING TO GIVE THEM WHAT THEY NEEDED.  THEY HAD BEEN



        24  DEALING WITH US PRIMARILY THROUGH OUR OEM SALES TEAM AND



        25  FELT LIKE THE REQUIREMENTS WERE NOT GETTING THROUGH.�
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         1  SPECIFICALLY, THEY DID NOT HAVE ANY DEFINITE COMMITMENTS



         2  FROM US ABOUT OUR WILLINGNESS TO COMPONENTIZED THE



         3  PRODUCT."



         4           NOW, YOU RECEIVED THIS--YOU'RE PART OF JBSTAFF, I



         5  ASSUME?



         6  A.   YES.



         7  Q.   SO YOU RECEIVED THIS.  AND DID YOU IMMEDIATELY TELL



         8  MR. HOMER THAT YOU HAD GIVEN INTUIT A DEFINITE COMMITMENT



         9  TO COMPONENTIZE THE PRODUCT?



        10  A.   SIR, THIS WAS IN AUGUST OF '96.  THAT GOES BACK TO



        11  THE TIME IN WHICH THEY WERE ABOUT TO RELEASE THE SPECS FOR



        12  THE PRODUCT.  SO, AT THAT TIME, AS I GATHER FROM



        13  MR. HOMER'S E-MAIL WHICH IS A VAGUELY FAMILIAR TO ME, THAT



        14  WE WERE IN THE PROCESS OF FINDING OUT WHAT THEIR NEEDS



        15  WERE AND SEEING IF WE COULD MEET THOSE.  AND LATER, WE DID



        16  COMMIT TO DOING THE THINGS THAT THEY SEEMED TO WANT TO GET



        17  DONE TO PROVIDE THE PRODUCTS.  AT THIS PARTICULAR TIME, WE



        18  WERE NOT OFFERING THAT, I PRESUME, BECAUSE WE WEREN'T



        19  REALLY ENGAGED IN THE PROCESS, YET.



        20  Q.   AND MICROSOFT HAD ALREADY DEMONSTRATED TO THEM A



        21  HIGHLY COMPONENTIZED SET OF FUNCTIONS?



        22  A.   AND THAT'S WHAT IT SAYS.



        23  Q.   WERE YOU AWARE THAT INTUIT AND OTHER ISV'S WERE



        24  CONCERNED THAT YOUR ENGINEERING TEAM WASN'T SUFFICIENTLY



        25  WILLING TO LISTEN TO THEIR INPUT AND GIVE THEM WHAT THEY�
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         1  NEEDED?



         2  A.   I WAS CONCERNED ABOUT THAT, YES.  IF THEY FELT THAT



         3  WAY, I WOULD HAVE WANTED TO FIX THAT.



         4  Q.   WHY WOULDN'T YOUR ENGINEERS WANT TO BE FOCUSED ON



         5  GIVING IMPORTANT CUSTOMERS WHAT THEY NEED?



         6  A.   IN THIS PARTICULAR CUSTOMER'S CASE AT THIS PARTICULAR



         7  TIME, THE ONLY THING I WOULD OFFER IS THAT WE WERE NOT



         8  AWARE THAT THEY WERE WANTING TO WORK WITH US IN THAT



         9  PARTICULAR WAY, BECAUSE WE DO HAVE A LOT OF SUCCESSFUL



        10  RELATIONSHIPS WHERE ENGINEERS DO WORK WITH VARIOUS



        11  DEVELOPERS.



        12           I WOULD ALSO POINT OUT, INTUIT, PRIOR TO THIS,



        13  HAD USED OUR PRODUCT AND, PERHAPS, IE--I DON'T KNOW--THEY



        14  HAVE BEEN AGNOSTIC--AND WERE USING THOSE PRODUCTS IN



        15  CONJUNCTION WITH QUICKEN AND THEIR OTHER FAMILY OF



        16  PRODUCTS TO GAIN ACCESS TO THE INTUIT WEB SITE, AND WE



        17  THOUGHT WE WERE ACCOMMODATING THEIR NEEDS.  THEIR DESIRE



        18  THEN CHANGED TO BUILD IN THIS PRODUCT, AND I THINK MAYBE



        19  WE JUST HADN'T PASSED IT OFF TO THE RIGHT PEOPLE AT THAT



        20  TIME.



        21           BUT AS I SAY, IN AUGUST OF THAT YEAR, I THINK



        22  THEY WERE KIND OF KNOCKING AROUND AS TO WHAT THEY MIGHT



        23  WANT TO DO WITH NEXT FALL YEAR'S VERSION OF QUICKEN.



        24  QUICKEN IS A VERY CHRISTMAS SEASON KIND OF DRIVEN PRODUCT.



        25  Q.   LET'S GO TO THE SECOND PAGE OF DEFENDANT'S 57 TO�
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         1  MS. MEREDITH'S E-MAIL AT THE BOTTOM OF THAT PAGE AND THE



         2  TOP OF THE THIRD PAGE.  AT THE BOTTOM OF THE SECOND PAGE,



         3  DO YOU SEE THE REFERENCE TO "DOGBERT"?  THE LAST SENTENCE



         4  ON THE SECOND PAGE.



         5  A.   YES.



         6  Q.   WHAT WAS DOGBERT?



         7  A.   DOGBERT IS A CHARACTER IN THE CARTOON STRIP "DILBERT"



         8  WHO PLAYS THE PART OF THE DOG.  WE NAMED OUR VARIOUS



         9  PRODUCTS THAT YEAR AFTER CARTOON CHARACTERS.  DOGBERT WAS



        10  ONE OF OUR PRODUCT CODE NAMES.



        11  Q.   WHAT WAS IT?



        12  A.   LET ME SEE.  AT THIS AUGUST OF '96, DOGBERT WOULD



        13  HAVE BEEN PART OF THE DEVELOPMENT FOR THE COMMUNICATOR,



        14  THE PRODUCT WE LATER CALLED "THE COMMUNICATOR."



        15  Q.   WELL, YOU SEE HER STATEMENT THERE THAT THIS



        16  REQUIREMENT, THE FOLLOWING SENTENCE, "THIS REQUIREMENT FOR



        17  BROWSER, AS COMPONENT, IS COMING UP FREQUENTLY THESE



        18  DAYS," THEN "E.G., INTUIT, DISNEY AND MERRILL LYNCH, SO I



        19  THINK WE WILL NEED TO ADDRESS IT WITH A DOGBERT POINT



        20  RELEASE, ASSUMING THAT WE CAN'T GET THERE WITH DOGBERT."



        21  WHAT DOES THAT MEAN?



        22  A.   WELL, POINT RELEASE OF A PRODUCT IS LIKE 3.01 OR



        23  3.02.  IT'S AN INTERIM RELEASE, AND IT WOULD HAVE BEEN A



        24  POINT RELEASE PRIOR TO GETTING THIS COMMUNICATOR OUT THAT



        25  HAD THESE FUNCTIONS.�
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         1  Q.   AND WAS DOGBERT A COMPONENTIZATION?



         2  A.   THEY WERE PARTS OF DOGBERT AT THAT TIME THAT WE



         3  PLANNED TO COMPONENTIZE.



         4  Q.   AND HAS THAT EVENTUALLY COME TO MARKET?



         5  A.   WELL, IN THE TOTALITY OF THE COMMUNICATOR, THERE ARE



         6  VARIOUS COMPONENTS THAT COMBINE TO MAKE THE PRODUCT.



         7  HERE, I THINK, MS. MEREDITH WAS REFERRING TO SPECIFICALLY



         8  THE NAVIGATOR AS A COMPONENT THAT WOULD HAVE THIS



         9  CAPABILITY.  IT IS ONE OF THE VARIOUS COMPONENTS OF



        10  COMMUNICATOR.



        11  Q.   OKAY.  SO, THE COMPONENT WOULD BE NAVIGATOR; IS THAT



        12  CORRECT?



        13  A.   AS I READ THIS MEMORANDUM, I THINK THAT'S WHAT SHE'S



        14  SUGGESTING.



        15  Q.   OKAY.  NOW, INTUIT, DISNEY AND MERRILL LYNCH ARE ALL



        16  IMPORTANT CUSTOMERS, ARE THEY NOT?



        17  A.   THEY ARE.



        18  Q.   AND THEY'RE THREE DIFFERENT TYPES OF CUSTOMERS?



        19  A.   THEY WOULD BE GENERALLY DIFFERENT TYPES OF CUSTOMERS



        20  IN SOME WAYS, AND SIMILAR IN OTHERS.



        21  Q.   WERE YOU AWARE THAT CUSTOMERS OF THAT IMPORTANCE WERE



        22  FREQUENTLY REQUESTING BROWSER AS A COMPONENT AT THAT TIME?



        23  A.   I KNEW THAT MICROSOFT WAS SELLING HEAVILY THAT THEY



        24  HAD A COMPONENTIZED PRODUCT, SO PEOPLE BEGAN TO SAY,



        25  "WELL, GEE, IF I HAD THAT, I MIGHT BUILD IT INTO THAT."�
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         1  BUT THE FACT IS, MERRILL LYNCH WAS, IS, AND STILL IS A



         2  VERY GOOD CUSTOMER OF OURS THAT WE HANDLE IN ANOTHER WAY,



         3  FROM A TECHNICAL POINT OF VIEW, VERY ADEQUATELY.  THAT'S



         4  HOW A LOT OF PEOPLE FIND OUT TODAY HOW THEIR MERRILL LUNCH



         5  ACCOUNTS ARE DOING, IS THROUGH THE NETSCAPE NAVIGATOR, AS



         6  MODIFIED, TO MEET THEIR NEEDS.



         7           IN THE CASE OF DISNEY, WE MADE SOME OTHER



         8  ARRANGEMENTS WITH THEM.  I KNOW AT THIS TIME THIS WAS A



         9  BIG POINT MICROSOFT WAS SELLING, AND WE WERE HAVING TO



        10  RESPOND TO IT, AND WE RESPONDED IN DIFFERENT WAYS AS BEST



        11  WE COULD.



        12  Q.   HAVE YOU YET RELEASED COMMERCIALLY A COMPONENTIZED



        13  BROWSER?



        14  A.   I HAVE ANSWERED THAT QUESTION THREE TIMES.  WE HAVE A



        15  BETA VERSION OF A COMPONENTIZED BROWSER.



        16           MR. WARDEN:  YOUR HONOR, AT THIS TIME, I OFFER



        17  DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT 58, PRE-MARKED, WHICH APPEARS TO BE



        18  HARD COPY OF AN ELMO OR SLIDE SHOW ENTITLED "INTUIT



        19  SITUATION," AND RUNS FROM NETSCAPE BATES NUMBER 63131 TO



        20  134.



        21           MR. BOIES:  YOUR HONOR, I DON'T THINK I HAVE AN



        22  OBJECTION.  MINE RUNS TO 35.



        23           MR. WARDEN:  YES, 135.



        24           THE COURT:  135 IT IS.



        25           NO OBJECTION?�

                                                           26



         1           MR. BOIES:  NO OBJECTION, YOUR HONOR.



         2           THE COURT:  ALL RIGHT.  DEFENDANT'S 58 IS



         3  ADMITTED.



         4                         (DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT NO. 58 WAS



         5                          ADMITTED INTO EVIDENCE.)



         6  BY MR. WARDEN:



         7  Q.   HAVE YOU SEEN THIS BEFORE, MR. BARKSDALE?  AND LET'S



         8  FORGET ABOUT THE HANDWRITING FOR THE MOMENT.  HAVE YOU



         9  SEEN THE DOCUMENT, WITH OR WITHOUT THE HANDWRITING,



        10  BEFORE?



        11  A.   I HAVE SEEN THE DOCUMENT WITH AND WITHOUT THE



        12  HANDWRITING.



        13  Q.   OKAY.  WHOSE HANDWRITING IS IT, IF YOU KNOW?



        14  A.   I DON'T KNOW.  I SEE THE NAME DSHADER AT THE TOP,



        15  WHERE IT SAYS "8/18/97 EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE."  THAT'S THE



        16  ONLY THING I KNOW.



        17  Q.   WHO WAS DANNY SHADER?



        18  A.   DANNY, AT THAT TIME, WAS THE HEAD OF OUR DEVELOPER



        19  RELATIONS GROUP.



        20  Q.   IS THIS THE DOCUMENT REFERRED TO IN PARAGRAPH 176 ON



        21  PAGE 93 OF YOUR WRITTEN DIRECT THAT IS DESCRIBED--



        22  A.   YES, SIR.



        23  Q.   IT IS?



        24  A.   YES.



        25  Q.   THANK YOU.�
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         1           AND DID MR. SHADER PRESENT THIS ANALYSIS TO



         2  NETSCAPE'S EXECUTIVE STAFF?



         3  A.   I DON'T REMEMBER IF HE PRESENTED IT IN THE FORMAL



         4  SENSE.  HE MAY HAVE.  IT APPEARS TO HAVE BEEN PREPARED



         5  THAT WAY, AND I DO REMEMBER WE HAD A DISCUSSION OF THE



         6  INTUIT SITUATION AT THIS MEETING.  THERE WERE MANY ITEMS



         7  DISCUSSED.  THIS WAS ONE ITEM THAT I HAD PUT ON THE



         8  AGENDA.



         9  Q.   IS THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE--DO YOU HAVE AN INSIDE



        10  EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE, OR IS THAT A REFERENCE TO A COMMITTEE



        11  OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS?



        12  A.   THAT'S AN INSIDE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE.



        13  Q.   IS THAT THE SAME THING AS JBSTAFF, OR IS THAT A



        14  DIFFERENT GROUP?



        15  A.   WELL, WITHOUT BORING THE COURT, WE EVOLVED, AND BY



        16  THIS TIME, AUGUST OF '97, WE HAD FORMED TWO LAYERS OF



        17  STAFF, AND WE CALLED THEM SEPARATE THINGS.  EXECUTIVE



        18  COMMITTEE, AT THIS TIME, REFERRED ONLY TO MY DIRECT



        19  REPORTS, AND JBSTAFF WAS THE TWO LAYERS OF OFFICERS OF THE



        20  COMPANY.



        21  Q.   NOW, THE PURPOSE OF THIS ANALYSIS WAS TO SEE WHAT HAD



        22  HAPPENED WITH INTUIT, WHY YOU DIDN'T GET THE BUSINESS; IS



        23  THAT CORRECT?



        24  A.   CORRECT.



        25  Q.   AND ON THE FIRST PAGE IT SAYS IN THE FIRST BULLET�
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         1  POINT, "INTUIT NEEDED A STANDARD CHROMELESS BROWSER



         2  COMPONENT TO EMBED."



         3           THE SECOND BULLET POINT--



         4  A.   LET ME SAY THIS, AND I DO THINK IT'S RELEVANT:  I'M



         5  NOT SURE THAT DANNY SHADER IS THE HANDWRITING ON THIS



         6  DOCUMENT.  I BELIEVE IT WAS MARC ANDREESSEN.  I THINK HE'S



         7  MAKING REFERENCE TO THE FACT THAT DANNY SHADER WAS MAKING



         8  THE PRESENTATION.



         9  Q.   FINE.



        10  A.   BECAUSE OVER HERE IN THE NOTES ON THE SIDE HE HAS



        11  "DS CLAIMS," WHICH WOULD NOT HAVE BEEN, IF YOU WERE THE



        12  NOTE TAKER, YOU WOULDN'T SAY "DS CLAIMS."



        13  Q.   THAT'S FINE.  I APPRECIATE THAT INFORMATION.



        14           ANYWAY, THE FIRST BULLET POINT SAYS, "INTUIT



        15  NEEDED A STANDARD CHROMELESS BROWSER COMPONENT TO EMBED."



        16           AND THEN THE SECOND BULLET POINT, DOES IT NOT,



        17  SAYS WHAT YOU OFFERED TO MEET THAT NEED; IS THAT CORRECT?



        18  A.   THAT'S WHAT IT SAYS.



        19  Q.   AND IT ALSO SAYS YOU DIDN'T DELIVER ANY OF THE THINGS



        20  YOU OFFERED, DOESN'T IT?



        21  A.   BECAUSE, IN SEVERAL CASES, THEY WERE NOT RESPONSIVE



        22  TO WHAT INTUIT WANTED, AND WE WITHDREW THE OFFER.



        23  Q.   WELL, LET'S TAKE THE SUPER KIOSK MODE NUMBER ONE.



        24  WHAT WAS THAT?



        25  A.   I DON'T REMEMBER.�
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         1  Q.   WASN'T THAT SOLUTION ACCEPTABLE TO INTUIT BUT NOT



         2  DELIVERED?



         3  A.   AGAIN, I DON'T KNOW.  I DON'T REMEMBER SPECIFICALLY



         4  WHICH WERE NOT DELIVERED.  BY THIS TIME, THE SITUATION WAS



         5  LOST FOR A VARIETY OF REASONS, AS I INDICATED IN MY



         6  TESTIMONY, INCLUDING SOME OTHER OFFERS MICROSOFT MADE.



         7  BUT I DON'T REMEMBER, GOING BACK NOW TWO YEARS, WHICH OF



         8  THESE FELL INTO WHICH CATEGORY.



         9  Q.   ALL RIGHT.  LET'S GO TO THE SECOND PAGE OF



        10  DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT 58, CAPTIONED "TIMELINE."  AND ON THE



        11  TOP OF THE LINE IT SAYS, "8/8/96, INTUIT PRESENTED



        12  REQUIREMENTS.  9/30/96, INTERNAL ESCALATION COMMENCED."



        13           WHAT DOES THAT MEAN?  DO YOU KNOW?



        14  A.   NORMALLY, THAT WOULD IMPLY OR INDICATE THAT AN ITEM



        15  HAD BECOME IMPORTANT ENOUGH TO ESCALATE IT IN THE



        16  ENGINEERING GROUP TO A HIGHER LEVEL OF EFFORT.



        17  Q.   OKAY.



        18  A.   IT COULD ALSO BE WITHIN THE--I'M NOT SURE RIGHT HERE,



        19  BUT IT MAY ALSO IMPLY ESCALATION WITHIN A DEVELOPER



        20  RELATIONS GROUP, WHICH IS MORE SALES-ORIENTED THAN



        21  ENGINEERING.



        22  Q.   OKAY.  THE NEXT ENTRY IS, "10/10/96, INTUIT, NETSCAPE



        23  MEETING SKM IS THE WAY TO GO."  THAT'S SUPER KIOSK MODE,



        24  IS IT NOT?



        25  A.   I PRESUME.  IT SEEMS TO HAVE THE RIGHT LETTERS.�
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         1  Q.   OKAY.  AND THEN, "11/1/96, SKM WON'T WORK."  DO YOU



         2  SEE THAT?  IT SAYS IT DOESN'T WORK.



         3  A.   THAT'S WHAT IT SAYS.



         4           I HAVE COVERED ALL THIS IN MY TESTIMONY.



         5  Q.   MR. BARKSDALE--



         6  A.   WE COULD GO THROUGH IT ONE LINE AT A TIME--



         7           MR. WARDEN:  YOUR HONOR, I ASK THAT THE WITNESS



         8  BE INSTRUCTED NOT TO VOLUNTEER STATEMENTS THAT ARE NOT



         9  RESPONSIVE, SUCH AS THAT.



        10           THE COURT:  JUST ANSWER HIS QUESTIONS,



        11  MR. BARKSDALE.



        12  BY MR. WARDEN:



        13  Q.   LET'S GO TO ITEM NUMBER TWO, MAGELLAN.



        14           WELL, BEFORE WE DO THAT, LET ME JUST ASK YOU,



        15  ISN'T THE ONLY WAY YOU CAN EMBED A BROWSER IN SUPER KIOSK



        16  MODE THROUGH THE USE OF OLE TECHNOLOGY?



        17  A.   I'M NOT QUALIFIED TO ANSWER THAT QUESTION.  I DON'T



        18  KNOW.



        19  Q.   DID NETSCAPE--



        20  A.   I DON'T KNOW THAT THAT'S THE ONLY WAY.



        21  Q.   DID NETSCAPE SUPPORT OLE TECHNOLOGY AS OF 11/1/96?



        22  A.   I DO NOT REMEMBER.



        23           MR. WARDEN:  YOUR HONOR, LET'S GO TO MAGELLAN,



        24  THE SECOND ALTERNATIVE.



        25  BY MR. WARDEN:�
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         1  Q.   IS THAT THE SAME MAGELLAN AS WE TALKED ABOUT BEFORE,



         2  THE LAYOUT ENGINE WRITTEN IN JAVA?



         3  A.   THAT WOULD HAVE BEEN ITS ORIGINAL VERSION, YES.



         4  Q.   AND THAT WAS A FAILURE, WAS IT NOT?



         5  A.   WELL, AS I HAVE SAID, WE NOW HAVE THE PRODUCT WORKING



         6  IN A DIFFERENT WAY.



         7  Q.   IN A DIFFERENT WAY?



         8  A.   IN C-PLUS-PLUS AS OPPOSED TO--



         9  Q.   JAVA?



        10  A.   JAVA, YES.



        11  Q.   AND LET'S LOOK AT THE TIMELINE ON THE SECOND PAGE



        12  WITH RESPECT TO MAGELLAN.  I SEE ON 11/14/96, AT AN



        13  INTUIT/NETSCAPE MEETING, MAGELLAN--IT SAID, "MAGELLAN



        14  WOULD MEET THEIR TIME FRAME," THEN THERE ARE MORE ENTRIES



        15  WITH RESPECT TO MAGELLAN.  AND FINALLY, IN BOLD FACE ABOVE



        16  THE LINE, IT SAYS "EO FEBRUARY."  WHAT DOES "EO" MEAN?



        17  A.   I PRESUME END OF.



        18  Q.   END OF FEBRUARY.



        19           "CONFERENCE CALL WITH INTUIT TO TELL THEM WE



        20  COULDN'T COMMIT WITH MAGELLAN."  DO YOU SEE THAT?



        21  A.   I DO.



        22  Q.   DO YOU RECALL THAT HAVING HAPPENED?



        23  A.   I DON'T RECALL IT.  I SEE IT ON THE DOCUMENT.  I



        24  DON'T KNOW WHETHER IT WAS FOR REASONS THAT--I DON'T KNOW



        25  WHY WE COULDN'T COMMIT, SO I DON'T KNOW.  I SEE IT ON THE�
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         1  DOCUMENT.



         2  Q.   WHEN DID YOU TELL THEM THAT MAGELLAN WOULD BE READY,



         3  IF YOU KNOW?



         4  A.   I DON'T KNOW.



         5  Q.   ALL RIGHT.  LET'S GO TO THE THIRD ITEM, THE



         6  CHROMELESS CHILD WINDOW.  WHAT WAS THAT?



         7  A.   I'M NOT SURE.  I KNOW WHAT CHROMELESS WAS REFERRING



         8  TO HERE, AND CHILD WOULD BE A SUBSET.  CHROMELESS JUST



         9  WOULD MEAN THAT IN THE RENDERING OF THE BROWSER, YOU TAKE



        10  ALL OF THE TOOLBAR AND OTHER INFORMATION OFF, AND YOU JUST



        11  HAVE THE PURE HTML WINDOW, AND I PRESUME THAT'S WHAT IT



        12  MEANS HERE.  CHILD WOULD IMPLY THAT IT'S THE SECOND LAYER



        13  SO THAT YOU COULD BRING IT UP WITHIN THAT WITHOUT SEEING



        14  THE CHROME, THE BUTTONS AND THE WRITING AND THE



        15  INSTRUCTIONS AND THE USER INTERFACES.



        16  Q.   AND WAS THAT OPTION OFFERED TOGETHER WITH NUMBER



        17  FOUR, THE OLE SERVER?



        18  A.   I DON'T KNOW.  IT WOULD INDICATE HERE THAT WE SHOWED



        19  THEM TOGETHER.  I DON'T KNOW IF THEY WERE OFFERED



        20  TOGETHER.



        21  Q.   THAT'S ON THE SECOND PAGE UNDER THE DATE 3/5/97?



        22  A.   THAT'S CORRECT.



        23  Q.   AND THEN THE NEXT ENTRY IS, "3/15/97 TO 4/21/97,



        24  INTUIT AND NETSCAPE ENGINEERS REALIZE SOLUTION WON'T



        25  WORK."�
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         1  A.   CORRECT.



         2           I THINK HERE IT WAS NOT SO MUCH THE CHILDLESS



         3  WINDOW AND THE CHROMELESS WINDOW WOULDN'T WORK.  IT



         4  WOULDN'T WORK FOR THIS APPLICATION.



         5  Q.   YES, I UNDERSTAND THAT.



         6           THEN AT THE END OF THAT APRIL 1, "GONE WITH



         7  MICROSOFT INTERNET EXPLORER;" IS THAT CORRECT?



         8  A.   CORRECT.



         9  Q.   GOING ON TO THE THIRD PAGE OF THE EXHIBIT 58, THE



        10  ANALYSIS YOU REQUESTED TURNS TO PRODUCT ISSUES, AND THE



        11  FIRST ENTRY IS, "EMBEDDABLE BROWSER, WE DON'T HAVE ONE."



        12           NOW, AT WHAT TIME WAS THIS ANALYSIS PREPARED BY



        13  MR. SHADER AT YOUR REQUEST?



        14  A.   I BELIEVE IT SHOWS AUGUST OF '97, BUT--IT DOESN'T



        15  SEEM TO BE DATED, BUT THERE IS A DATE UP AT THE TOP



        16  HANDWRITTEN, SO I PRESUME THAT WAS IT.



        17  Q.   THANK YOU.



        18           THEN IT SAYS, "THAT SHOWED PROTOTYPES, NOT REAL



        19  PRODUCTS."



        20           WAS THAT A PROBLEM GENERALLY AT THAT TIME IN



        21  DEALING WITH IMPORTANT ISV'S?



        22  A.   I DON'T BELIEVE THERE IS A PRODUCT IN GENERAL.  I



        23  THINK IT WAS A PRODUCT WHERE--IT WAS A SITUATION WITH THIS



        24  PARTICULAR ISV.  THERE WERE ACTUALLY WERE VERY FEW THEN



        25  AND NOW ISV'S WHO WANT AN EMBEDDABLE BROWSER.  THE TWO�
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         1  BIGGEST I WAS AWARE OF WERE AOL AND INTUIT.



         2  Q.   BOTH OF WHOM MAKE VERY IMPORTANT SOFTWARE, DON'T



         3  THEY?  VERY PROMINENT IN THE MARKETPLACE?



         4  A.   WELL, I WOULD AGREE THAT INTUIT DOES.  I THINK AOL IS



         5  MORE REGARDED AS A SERVICE PROVIDER THAN A SOFTWARE MAKER,



         6  BUT I WOULD TAKE YOUR POINT.



         7  Q.   OKAY.  AND THEN UNDER THE PROTOTYPE ENTRY THERE IS A



         8  BULLET POINT, "NO INTERNAL COMMITMENT TO DELIVER."  DO YOU



         9  RECALL WHAT THAT MEANT?



        10  A.   WELL, THIS GOES BACK TO THE POINT I MADE EARLIER WITH



        11  AOL, WHICH, IN BOTH OF THESE CASES, BECAUSE THEY WERE



        12  UNIQUE SORT OF ONE-OFF THINGS, WE DID ASK THAT WE GET A



        13  COMMITMENT FROM THEM BEFORE WE COMMITTED, AND THEN WE HAD



        14  HOPED TO GET THAT KIND OF A COMMITMENT MUCH LIKE



        15  AIRCRAFTER LAUNCH.  WE NEEDED A LAUNCH CUSTOMER, AND WE



        16  WERE LOOKING FOR A LAUNCH CUSTOMER FOR THIS KIND OF



        17  ENGINEERING WORK.



        18  Q.   DID YOU TELL THEM, WITHIN YOUR ORGANIZATION, THERE



        19  WOULD BE AN INTERNAL COMMITMENT TO DELIVER IF THEY



        20  COMMITTED TO YOU?



        21  A.   WELL, I ALREADY RELAYED TO YOU, I DID THAT WITH AOL



        22  ON MORE THAN ONE OCCASION.



        23           AND IN THE PARTICULAR CASE OF INTUIT, I DON'T



        24  KNOW THAT I PERSONALLY TOLD THEM THAT, AND I, THEREFORE,



        25  CAN'T SPEAK TO WHETHER SOMEONE ELSE MAY HAVE TOLD THEM�
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         1  THAT.  THAT WAS OUR ATTITUDE AT THE TIME, SO I PRESUME



         2  THAT WOULD HAVE SPED ALONG.



         3  Q.   ISN'T MR. SHADER SAYING HERE THAT WHATEVER MAY HAVE



         4  BEEN TOLD TO INTUIT, THERE WAS, IN FACT, NO INTERNAL



         5  COMMITMENT TO DELIVER WITHIN NETSCAPE?



         6  A.   FOR THE REASONS I IDENTIFIED, YES.



         7  Q.   WHAT DOES IT MEAN DOWN HERE AT THE BOTTOM, "INTUIT



         8  NOT ENTERPRISE ISV"?



         9  A.   THAT WOULD GENERAL REFER TO WHEN I FIRST DESCRIBED



        10  THEIR PRODUCTS, THAT INTUIT MAKES A RETAIL PRODUCT THAT IS



        11  SOLD ONE AT A TIME TO INDIVIDUAL RETAIL CUSTOMERS, EXCEPT



        12  FOR SOME SMALL BUSINESS APPLICATIONS THEY HAVE, AND AN



        13  ENTERPRISE ISV WOULD BE AN INDEPENDENT SOFTWARE VENDOR WHO



        14  SELLS PRODUCTS TO LARGE--MEDIUM AND LARGE CORPORATIONS FOR



        15  USE, AND INTUIT DID NOT FALL INTO THAT CATEGORY.



        16  Q.   AND WHY WAS THAT AN ITEM LISTED UNDER THE HEADING



        17  "ISSUES" IN THIS ANALYSIS?



        18  A.   I THINK HERE MR. SHADER IS MAKING THE POINT THAT WE



        19  HAD OUR OEM SALESPEOPLE LINED UP TO SELL PRODUCTS TO



        20  ENTERPRISE ISV'S, AND THEY WERE TRYING TO HANDLE, IN THIS



        21  CASE, A COMPANY THAT DIDN'T FIT INTO THAT MOLD, THAT THEY



        22  WERE--INTUIT IS STILL A FAIRLY UNIQUE TYPE OF A BUSINESS



        23  OPERATION, AND I THINK HE WAS TRYING TO MAKE THE POINT



        24  THAT THEY DIDN'T FIT NEATLY INTO A PIGEON-HOLE THAT WE HAD



        25  EITHER IN OUR OEM SALES GROUP OR IN OUR DEVELOPER�
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         1  RELATIONS GROUP WHICH MR. SHADER WAS IN CHARGE OF.



         2  Q.   NOW, MICROSOFT HAD COMMITTED TO DELIVERING A



         3  COMPONENTIZED EMBEDDABLE BROWSER WITHOUT GETTING CUSTOMER



         4  COMMITMENTS FIRST, HAD IT NOT?



         5  A.   FOR FREE.



         6  Q.   AND THE REFERENCE HERE TO EMBEDDABLE BROWSER, "WE



         7  DON'T HAVE ONE," IS THE VERY ISSUE MS. MEREDITH RAISED IN



         8  THE E-MAIL FROM A YEAR BEFORE THAT WE LOOKED AT A FEW



         9  MINUTES AGO; ISN'T THAT CORRECT?



        10  A.   I ALREADY SAID THAT.  I DON'T BELIEVE THAT WAS A



        11  PRIMARY REASON THAT WE DIDN'T GET THE BUSINESS, BUT I



        12  CERTAINLY AGREE SHE SAID THAT.



        13  Q.   NOW, AT THIS TIME, I TAKE IT, WHEN YOU SHOWED



        14  PROTOTYPES, DID MICROSOFT HAVE REAL PRODUCTS TO SHOW?



        15  A.   IN THE FALL OF '96, I DON'T BELIEVE THEY DO BECAUSE



        16  IN THE FALL OF '96, THEY ONLY HAD IE 2 AS THEIR LATEST



        17  PRODUCT, WHICH I DON'T BELIEVE WAS COMPONENTIZED.  BUT



        18  THEY MAY HAVE HAD--LIKE YOU SAID EARLIER, THEY MAY HAVE



        19  HAD BETAS OR MOCKUPS OR PROTOTYPES OF SOME TYPE.  THEY



        20  DIDN'T DEMONSTRATE THEM ANYWHERE THAT I WAS PRESENT.



        21  Q.   ISN'T IT TRUE THAT DURING THE COURSE OF INTUIT'S



        22  CONSIDERING WHETHER TO ADOPT YOURS OR MICROSOFT'S



        23  TECHNOLOGY, INTUIT GAVE MR. SHADER A LIST OF DROP-DEAD



        24  REQUIREMENTS AND TOLD HIM THAT MICROSOFT HAD ALREADY MET



        25  THOSE REQUIREMENTS?�
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         1  A.   THEY MAY HAVE.



         2           MR. WARDEN:  YOUR HONOR, I OFFER WHAT HAS BEEN



         3  PRE-MARKED DEFENDANT'S 59, WHICH IS A DOCUMENT ON WHICH I



         4  DON'T SEE ANY BATES NUMBERS, AUTHORED BY DSHADER AT



         5  NETSCAPE, DATED MARCH 6TH, 1997, AND ADDRESSED TO ERIK



         6  TORRES AT INTUIT, WITH COPIES TO VARIOUS PEOPLE AT



         7  NETSCAPE.



         8           MR. BOIES:  YOUR HONOR, MAY I INQUIRE WHERE THIS



         9  DOCUMENT WAS PRODUCED FROM?



        10           MR. WARDEN:  INTUIT.



        11           MR. BOIES:  NO OBJECTION, YOUR HONOR.



        12           THE COURT:  I'M TRYING TO FIGURE OUT WHO IT GOES



        13  TO AND FROM.



        14           MR. WARDEN:  I'M SORRY.  IT'S FROM MR. SHADER TO



        15  MR. TORRES, T-O-R-R-E-S, AT INTUIT, IT LOOKS TO ME LIKE.



        16  BY MR. WARDEN:



        17  Q.   IS THAT THE WAY YOU WOULD READ THAT, MR. BARKSDALE,



        18  THE "TO" LINE AT THE TOP?



        19  A.   ERIK TORRES.



        20  Q.   AT INTUIT; IS THAT CORRECT?



        21  A.   YES, SIR.



        22           THE COURT:  ALL RIGHT.  DEFENDANT'S 59 IS



        23  ADMITTED.



        24                         (DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT NO. 59 WAS



        25                          ADMITTED INTO EVIDENCE.)�
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         1           MR. WARDEN:  YOUR HONOR, I DIRECT THE COURT'S



         2  ATTENTION TO THE MESSAGE AT THE BOTTOM OF PAGE ONE AND TOP



         3  OF PAGE TWO WITH RESPECT TO, QUOTE, DROP-DEAD



         4  REQUIREMENTS, AND ITEMS ONE, TWO AND THREE APPEAR UNDER



         5  THAT HEADING, AND THEN FOUR ON APPEARS UNDER THE HEADING



         6  "SIGNIFICANT REQUIREMENTS," AND I WOULD JUST CALL THE



         7  COURT'S ATTENTION TO THE FACT THAT AS TO EACH OF THE



         8  DROP-DEAD REQUIREMENTS, IT SAYS "MSIE," MEANING MICROSOFT



         9  INTERNET EXPLORER, "HANDLES THIS" OR WORKS.



        10  BY MR. WARDEN:



        11  Q.   NOW, THIS WAS PREPARED IN AUGUST OF 1997.



        12           DID YOU SAY MICROSOFT WAS STILL OFFERING IE 2.0



        13  AT THAT TIME?



        14  A.   THIS WAS PREPARED IN MARCH OF '97, NOT AUGUST.



        15  Q.   I'M SORRY.  I'M TALKING ABOUT DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT 58.



        16  A.   I DON'T HAVE 58.



        17  Q.   THAT'S THE SHADER ANALYSIS.



        18  A.   OH, OKAY.  I'M SORRY.  YES, I THOUGHT YOU WERE



        19  TALKING ABOUT THIS ONE YOU JUST HANDED ME.



        20  Q.   ALL RIGHT.  WASN'T IT YOUR TESTIMONY A MINUTE AGO



        21  THAT IN AUGUST OF '97, MICROSOFT WAS STILL OFFERING



        22  IE 2.0?



        23  A.   NO, SIR.  I SAID AUGUST OF '96.  WE WERE TALKING



        24  ABOUT THIS OTHER MEMO.  I THINK I'M RIGHT ABOUT THAT.



        25  Q.   I'M SORRY.  WHAT ABOUT AUGUST OF '97?  WHAT WAS�
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         1  MICROSOFT OFFERING THEN?



         2  A.   I DON'T REMEMBER THE EXACT RELEASE DATE OF 3.0, BUT



         3  IT WOULD HAVE BEEN AROUND THAT DATE.  THEY WERE PROBABLY



         4  IN THEIR LAST BETA, IF NOT RELEASED IN ABOUT AUGUST OF



         5  '97.



         6           ACTUALLY, I THINK 3.0 WAS RELEASED IN MAYBE



         7  SEPTEMBER, BUT END OF THE SUMMER.



         8  Q.   ISN'T IT TRUE THAT IE 3.0 WAS RELEASED ALMOST A YEAR



         9  BEFORE AUGUST '97, AND IN AUGUST OF '97, IE 4.0 WAS ABOUT



        10  TO COME OUT?



        11  A.   YOU'RE RIGHT.  I'M A YEAR OFF.  THAT'S RIGHT.



        12  Q.   THANK YOU.



        13           LET'S GO TO PARAGRAPH 177 OF YOUR WRITTEN



        14  TESTIMONY ON PAGE 93, PLEASE.  AND DIRECTING YOUR



        15  ATTENTION TO THE FIRST SENTENCE, WHO ON YOUR TEAM BELIEVED



        16  THAT THE REASON NETSCAPE DIDN'T GET THE QUICKEN DEAL WAS



        17  BECAUSE INTUIT FOUND MICROSOFT'S ENGINEERING SOLUTION



        18  PREFERABLE?



        19  A.   WELL, I THINK THAT WOULD BE PEOPLE LIKE MR. SHADER,



        20  FOR INSTANCE, WHO WROTE THIS REPORT.



        21  Q.   AND HE WAS IN MARKETING; IS THAT RIGHT?



        22  A.   MR. SHADER WAS IN DEVELOPER RELATIONS, WHICH IS PART



        23  MARKETING AND PART ENGINEERING.



        24  Q.   OKAY.  DIDN'T YOUR ENGINEERS SUBSCRIBE TO THE



        25  STATEMENT MADE THAT YOU DIDN'T GET IT BECAUSE MICROSOFT'S�
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         1  SOLUTION WAS PREFERABLE?



         2  A.   SOME OF OUR ENGINEERS MAY HAVE.  OTHERS DID NOT.



         3  PEOPLE SEEM TO HAVE MIXED FEELINGS ABOUT IT WHO HAD WORKED



         4  VERY HARD ON THIS ACCOUNT.  IT'S HARD TO GET ANY TWO



         5  ENGINEERS TO AGREE.



         6  Q.   NOW, GOING TO PARAGRAPH 178, WHAT IS THE BASIS FOR



         7  THE STATEMENT THAT MICROSOFT COERCED INTUIT INTO ADOPTING



         8  ITS TECHNOLOGY?



         9  A.   THE BASIS FOR THAT, IN MY OPINION, WERE CONVERSATIONS



        10  I HAD WITH PEOPLE LIKE BILL HARRIS AND BILL CAMPBELL FROM



        11  INTUIT WHO, AFTER THIS, ALL SAID THERE WERE OTHER FACTORS



        12  INVOLVED THAT YOU GUYS DIDN'T KNOW ABOUT AND WERE



        13  INFLUENTIAL ON THIS.



        14           AND HAD CONVERSATIONS TO THIS DAY ABOUT THIS



        15  SITUATION WITH THEM.



        16  Q.   ABOUT COERCION?



        17  A.   ABOUT THE FACT THAT MICROSOFT HAD AGREED FOR THE



        18  FIRST TIME TO SOMETHING THAT INTUIT THOUGHT THEY WOULD



        19  NEVER AGREE TO, WHICH WAS THIS INCLUSION OF QUICKEN CODE



        20  INTO WINDOWS AND THE DISPLAY OF QUICKEN.COM ON THE



        21  DESKTOP, BECAUSE QUICKEN.COM WAS A COMPETITOR TO A PRODUCT



        22  THAT MICROSOFT HAD CALLED "MONEY," WHICH HAD BEEN IN AN



        23  INTENSE COMPETITIVE BATTLE FOR YEARS, AND PERHAPS YOU



        24  REMEMBER MICROSOFT WAS GOING TO ACTUALLY BUY INTUIT AT ONE



        25  TIME.�
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         1  Q.   I DO REMEMBER THAT.



         2           ARE YOU SAYING THAT QUICKEN.COM HAD AN ICON ON



         3  THE DESKTOP?



         4  A.   THAT WAS MY UNDERSTANDING, THAT THEY HAD AGREED TO



         5  PUT THAT ON THE DESKTOP.



         6  Q.   ISN'T IT TRUE THAT, IN FACT, THEY JUST WENT INTO A



         7  CATEGORY ON THE CHANNEL BAR?



         8  A.   I DON'T THAT I UNDERSTAND THE DISTINCTION BETWEEN THE



         9  CATEGORY ON THE CHANNEL BAR, WHICH IS ALWAYS OPEN, AND AN



        10  ICON ON THE DESKTOP.



        11  Q.   WHAT QUICKEN CODE IS IN WINDOWS?



        12  A.   AGAIN, YOU WOULD HAVE TO GET AN ENGINEER TO ANSWER



        13  THAT.  THERE WERE SOME FUNCTIONS THAT THEY NEEDED AND



        14  WANTED THAT WOULD ALLOW QUICKEN TO RUN MORE QUICKLY ON TOP



        15  OF WINDOWS IF IT WAS EMBEDDED INTO THE OPERATING SYSTEM



        16  HAVING TO DO, I THINK, WITH SOME OF THE MATHEMATICAL



        17  FUNCTIONS THAT THE PRODUCT PERFORMS AND OTHER THINGS.



        18  Q.   SO, MICROSOFT AGREED TO IMPROVE THE OPERATING SYSTEM



        19  SO AS TO ENABLE QUICKEN TO GIVE A BETTER PRODUCT TO THE



        20  PUBLIC; IS THAT WHAT YOU'RE SAYING?



        21  A.   THAT'S MY UNDERSTANDING, YES, SIR.  THAT'S WHAT I WAS



        22  TOLD.



        23  Q.   THE CHANNEL BAR CAN BE TURNED OFF BY OEM'S, CAN IT



        24  NOT?



        25  A.   I THINK IT COULD, YES.�
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         1  Q.   OKAY.  LET'S GO TO PAGE 95, PARAGRAPH 181.



         2           HOW MANY INTERNET CONTENT PROVIDER PARTNERS DOES



         3  NETSCAPE HAVE?



         4  A.   IN THE SENSE OF THOSE WHO DISPLAY THE "NETSCAPE NOW"



         5  BUTTON AS PARTNERS, OR THOSE WHO USE OUR PRODUCTS?



         6  Q.   WELL--



         7  A.   I DON'T KNOW THAT I KNOW THE ANSWER TO EITHER, BUT I



         8  TESTIFIED ON THE "NETSCAPE NOW" BUTTON THAT THERE WERE



         9  SOMEWHERE AROUND 10 TO 20 TO 30,000, MAYBE, THE NUMBER I



        10  HAVE SEEN SOMEWHAT RECENTLY.



        11  Q.   ISN'T IT TRUE THAT ALL OF THE MAJOR CONTENT COMPANIES



        12  ARE PARTICIPANTS, PARTNERS IN THIS PROGRAM?



        13  A.   THERE ARE MANY, BUT AS I MENTIONED A WHILE AGO, IT'S



        14  NOT AN EXCLUSIVE DEAL BECAUSE MOST OF THESE PEOPLE HAVE



        15  TWO WEB SITES, ONE THAT HAS "NETSCAPE NOW" AND ONE THAT



        16  MAY HAVE "IE NOW," OR WHATEVER IE'S EQUIVALENT OF THAT IS.



        17  "DOWNLOAD INTERNET EXPLORER," I THINK, OR WHATEVER IT'S



        18  CALLED.



        19  Q.   IF MR. HOMER TESTIFIED THAT ALL THE MAJOR CONTENT



        20  COMPANIES--AND I'M REFERRING TO PAGE 190, FIRST SIX LINES



        21  OR SO--THAT ALL OF THE MAJOR CONTENT COMPANIES ARE STILL



        22  AT THE TABLE AS PARTNERS OF YOURS, WOULD YOU DISAGREE WITH



        23  THAT?



        24  A.   WITHIN THE RESTRICTIONS I JUST GAVE YOU, I WOULD



        25  AGREE WITH THAT, MAINLY THAT THAT DOESN'T MEAN ANYTHING.�
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         1  IT DOESN'T MEAN THEY'RE EXCLUSIVES.  BUT WE HAVE A LOT OF



         2  CONTENT RELATIONSHIPS.



         3  Q.   OKAY.  HOW SUCCESSFUL WAS THE MICROSOFT CHANNEL BAR?



         4  A.   I THINK YOU WOULD HAVE TO ASK MICROSOFT THAT.  I HAVE



         5  HEARD MR. GATES SAY THAT IT WASN'T, AND THEY PULLED IT



         6  DOWN SHORTLY BEFORE HE GAVE TESTIMONY TO THE U.S. SENATE.



         7  Q.   ISN'T IT TRUE THAT NETSCAPE, ITSELF, LEARNED THAT



         8  CHANNEL BARS DO NOT DRIVE USERS TO CONTENT SITES?



         9  A.   I THINK THAT WE LEARNED THAT IT WAS NOT AS SUCCESSFUL



        10  AS THAT WE HAD ORIGINALLY HOPED.  IT DID DRIVE SOME, BUT--



        11  Q.   AND DIDN'T YOU LEARN THAT CONTENT PROVIDERS PERCEIVE



        12  LITTLE VALUE IN CHANNEL BARS?



        13  A.   I WOULDN'T ARGUE WITH THAT STATEMENT.  I DIDN'T



        14  PERSONALLY LEARN THAT, BUT I WOULD SAY WE LEARNED A LOT



        15  ABOUT WHAT DRIVES CUSTOMERS TO AND FROM WEB SITES.



        16  Q.   NOW, GOING TO PARAGRAPH 182 ABOUT DISNEY, HOW MUCH



        17  MONEY DID NETSCAPE WANT DISNEY TO PAY FOR THE PRIVILEGE OF



        18  BEING ON THE NETSCAPE CHANNEL BAR?



        19  A.   I DON'T REMEMBER.  I DON'T KNOW THAT I KNEW EXACTLY.



        20  Q.   CAN YOU GIVE US AN ORDER OF MAGNITUDE?  ARE WE



        21  TALKING THOUSANDS?  HUNDREDS OF THOUSANDS?  MILLIONS?



        22  A.   I WOULD NOT WANT TO HAZARD A GUESS.  I DON'T KNOW THE



        23  DEAL, THE DOLLAR AMOUNT.



        24  Q.   DIDN'T DISNEY ACTUALLY APPEAR ON A NETSCAPE CHANNEL



        25  BAR?�
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         1  A.   THEY MAY HAVE.  THEY JUST DIDN'T, I THINK, PAID US



         2  FOR IT BECAUSE THEY WERE PRECLUDED FROM THEIR MICROSOFT



         3  CONTRACT.



         4  Q.   WHO APPEARED ON THE NETSCAPE CHANNEL BAR WHEN IT WAS



         5  FIRST INTRODUCED?



         6  A.   THAT'S A MATTER OF HISTORY--I MEAN, HISTORICAL RECORD



         7  I JUST DON'T HAVE COMMAND OF.  I CAN REMEMBER A FEW.



         8  Q.   TELL ME WHO YOU REMEMBER.



         9  A.   IT SEEMS TO ME CNN-FN WAS ONE; IS THAT CORRECT?



        10  Q.   AS FAR AS--



        11  A.   DO YOU HAVE A LIST THERE?  I DON'T KNOW.



        12  Q.   MR. BARKSDALE, I'M ASKING YOU TO TELL ME, AS WELL AS



        13  YOU CAN REMEMBER, WHO.



        14  A.   CNN-FN, I BELIEVE; FEDERAL EXPRESS, I BELIEVE.  IT



        15  SEEMS TO ME THERE WERE 10 OR 12 DIFFERENT COMPANIES THAT



        16  HAD BOUGHT SPACE ON IT.  ABC MAY HAVE BEEN ON THERE.  I



        17  DON'T REMEMBER.  ONE OF THE SPORTS COMPANIES AS PART OF



        18  CBS.  DISCOVERY CHANNEL.



        19  Q.   LET'S GO TO PARAGRAPH 191 ON PAGE 99.



        20           MR. BOIES:  YOUR HONOR, COULD I ASK TO THE COURT



        21  IF MR. WARDEN IS GOING ON TO ANOTHER SUBJECT WHETHER HE



        22  COULD MAYBE GIVE ME THE CITE TO THE HOMER DEPOSITION



        23  AGAIN.  190, FIRST SIX LINES, IS NOT--



        24           MR. WARDEN:  BOB WILL HELP YOU THERE.



        25  BY MR. WARDEN:�

                                                           45



         1  Q.   PAGE 99, PARAGRAPH 191.



         2  A.   YES.



         3  Q.   CORPORATE ACCOUNTS, THIS IS THE SO-CALLED ENTERPRISE



         4  SEGMENT; IS THAT CORRECT?



         5  A.   YES.



         6  Q.   AND ISN'T IT TRUE, AS YOU SIT HERE TODAY, THAT



         7  NETSCAPE HAS A LARGER SHARE OF CORPORATE USERS OR



         8  ENTERPRISE USERS OF WEB-BROWSING SOFTWARE THAN MICROSOFT



         9  DOES?



        10  A.   I BELIEVE WE HAVE A LARGER SHARE OF WEB-CLIENT



        11  SOFTWARE.  I HAVEN'T SEEN BREAKOUTS ON TOTAL WEB SOFTWARE.



        12  I HAVE SEEN THE ZONA REPORT THAT SAYS WE HAVE A LARGER



        13  CLIENT SHARE THAT HAD GONE BACK UP ONCE WE MADE THE



        14  PRODUCT FREE.



        15  Q.   BY "CLIENT," YOU MEAN BROWSER?



        16  A.   YES, SIR.



        17  Q.   YOU HAVE SEEN THE ZONA REPORT.



        18           MR. WARDEN:  YOUR HONOR, I OFFER DEFENDANT'S



        19  EXHIBIT 60 FOR IDENTIFICATION, WHICH IS A NEWS ARTICLE



        20  ABOUT THE ZONA REPORT, DATED OCTOBER 15TH, 1998.



        21  BY MR. WARDEN:



        22  Q.   AND I BELIEVE YOU HAD SEEN THE ZONA REPORT; IS THAT



        23  CORRECT, MR. BARKSDALE?



        24  A.   I DON'T KNOW THAT I HAVE ACTUALLY SEEN THE REPORT.  I



        25  BELIEVE I SAW EITHER THIS ARTICLE OR EXCERPTS FROM THIS�
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         1  ARTICLE THAT WAS ON C/NET.



         2  Q.   OKAY.



         3  A.   IN FACT, I HAVE NOT SEEN THE ZONA REPORT ITSELF.  I



         4  HAVE BEEN TRAVELING A LOT LATELY, AND THIS CAME OUT IN THE



         5  LAST WEEK OR SO.



         6  Q.   AND THIS REPORT SAYS THAT NAVIGATOR HAS INCREASED ITS



         7  LEAD AS THE PRIMARY BROWSER IN NORTH AMERICAN



         8  CORPORATIONS, THAT ZONA REPORTS THAT 60 PERCENT USE



         9  NAVIGATOR AS THEIR DEFAULT BROWSER TO 40 PERCENT FOR IE,



        10  AND THEN NETSCAPE'S LEAD HAS INCREASED SIX PERCENTAGE



        11  POINTS WHILE USE OF IE HAS DROPPED BY FIVE.



        12           IS ZONA ONE OF THE REPORT SERVICES OR RESEARCH



        13  SERVICES THAT YOU REGULARLY CONSULT IN CONDUCTING YOUR



        14  BUSINESS?



        15  A.   WE DO, I THINK, SUBSCRIBE TO ZONA--I DO



        16  PERSONALLY--AND WE SEE THEIR REPORTS.



        17  Q.   I'M SORRY?



        18  A.   WE SEE THEIR REPORTS.



        19           MR. WARDEN:  I OFFER IT, YOUR HONOR.



        20           THE COURT:  ANY OBJECTION TO DEFENDANT'S 60?



        21           MR. BOIES:  IT'S BEING OFFERED FOR THE TRUTH?



        22           THE COURT:  I'M SURE IT IS.



        23           MR. WARDEN:  IT'S BEEN OFFERED FOR THE TRUTH THAT



        24  THAT'S WHAT ZONA HAS REPORTED ITS SURVEY RESULTS TO BE.  I



        25  MEAN--�
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         1           MR. BOIES:  NO OBJECTION.



         2           THE COURT:  DEFENDANT'S 60 IS ADMITTED.



         3                         (DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT NO. 60 WAS



         4                          ADMITTED INTO EVIDENCE.)



         5           THE COURT:  FOR WHATEVER TRUTH THERE IS IN IT.



         6  BY MR. WARDEN:



         7  Q.   WELL, THE ENTERPRISE SEGMENT IS THE AREA IN WHICH YOU



         8  FOCUS YOUR BUSINESS, IS IT NOT?



         9  A.   THAT AND THE PORTAL SPACE.



        10  Q.   AND DO YOU HAVE ANY REASON TO QUESTION THE CONCLUSION



        11  THAT YOU HAVE BEEN INCREASING YOUR BROWSER OR CLIENT SHARE



        12  OF USAGE BY MAJOR CORPORATIONS?



        13  A.   I ACTUALLY THINK THAT PROVES THE POINT I'M MAKING IN



        14  THIS WHOLE COMPLAINT ISSUE HERE, WHERE WE HAVE MORE ACCESS



        15  TO THE MARKET, WE ARE DOING MUCH BETTER THAN WHERE WE HAVE



        16  BEEN ESTOPPED FROM HALF OF THE DISTRIBUTION CHANNELS.  SO



        17  YES, I THINK IT SAYS SOMETHING THAT'S SOMETHING WE ARE



        18  VERY PROUD OF.  WHEN WE GET TO COMPETE HEAD TO HEAD, WE DO



        19  PRETTY GOOD.



        20  Q.   AND THE PC'S THAT GO INTO THE ENTERPRISE SEGMENT HAVE



        21  THE TOTALITY OF WINDOWS 98, INCLUDING ALL OF ITS BROWSER



        22  FUNCTIONALITY, PRE-INSTALLED, DON'T THEY?



        23  A.   NO, SIR.



        24  Q.   THEY DON'T?



        25  A.   THAT'S MY POINT.  MOST PEOPLE--MOST CORPORATIONS CAN�
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         1  ORDER THEIR PC'S INTO THEIR CORPORATION, MEDIUM AND LARGE,



         2  PRECONFIGURED WITH WINDOWS 95, WINDOWS 3.1 AND OTHER



         3  PRODUCTS.  AND, IN FACT, THAT'S THE WHOLE POINT THAT



         4  MICHAEL DELL LIVES ON, IS THAT HE WILL SHIP THEM WHATEVER



         5  THEY WANT.



         6  Q.   AND WE STILL MAKE THOSE.  MICROSOFT STILL MAKES THOSE



         7  OPERATING SYSTEMS AND AUTHORIZES OEM'S TO SHIP THEM, 3.1



         8  AND 95; ISN'T THAT CORRECT?  ANYONE WHO WANTS TO BUY ONE



         9  WITH THOSE OPERATING SYSTEMS CAN DO SO.



        10  A.   BUT THOSE OPERATING SYSTEMS DON'T HAVE INTEGRATED IN



        11  THEM THE BROWSER; THAT WAS THE QUESTION.



        12  Q.   YEAH, BUT THEY'RE MADE AVAILABLE TO THE MARKET BY



        13  MICROSOFT, ARE THEY NOT?



        14  A.   AND GOD BLESS THEM.



        15           THE COURT:  I THINK WE WILL TAKE OUR AFTERNOON



        16  RECESS.



        17           MR. WARDEN:  YOUR HONOR, YOU WANT THAT SESSION



        18  NOW?



        19           THE COURT:  IF THIS IS AN APPROPRIATE TIME TO DO



        20  IT.



        21           MR. WARDEN:  THAT'S FINE, AND WE HAVE REACHED



        22  AGREEMENT ABOUT THE PROCEDURES.



        23           THE COURT:  VERY WELL.  THEN WE WILL TAKE A



        24  20-MINUTE RECESS.



        25           COUNSEL, APPROACH THE BENCH.�
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         1           (BENCH CONFERENCE.)



         2           MR. WARDEN:  MR. SNYDER ADVISED ME AFTER I OPENED



         3  MY QUESTIONS WITH HIM, AS YOUR HONOR ASKED, THAT HE WOULD



         4  LIKE HIS TESTIMONY HEARD IN A CLOSED COURTROOM, AND SO HE



         5  COULD REMAIN.



         6           THE COURT:  COULD REMAIN?



         7           MR. WARDEN:  YES.



         8           THE COURT:  THAT'S FINE.



         9           MR. SNYDER:  BASED ON THE QUESTIONS WHICH



        10  MR. WARDEN HAS DONE, THAT'S ACCEPTABLE TO US.



        11           THE COURT:  WE WILL CLOSE THE COURTROOM, AND WHEN



        12  I COME BACK ON THE BENCH, ALL FURTHER PROCEEDINGS IN THE



        13  COURTROOM WILL BE UNDER SEAL, AND MR. NEUKOM MAY



        14  REMAIN.



        15           MR. WARDEN:  THAT WILL ONLY TAKE TWO OR THREE



        16  MINUTES, AND THEN I WILL FINISH BEFORE THE END OF THE DAY.



        17           MR. BOIES:  GOOD, EXCELLENT.



        18           (END OF BENCH CONFERENCE.)



        19           (BRIEF RECESS.)



        20



        21



        22



        23



        24        (PAGES 50, 51 AND 52 UNDER SEAL)



        25�
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         1           (PORTION NOT UNDER SEAL.)



         2           THE COURT:  AS THE TRANSCRIPTS OF THE TWO BENCH



         3  CONFERENCES THAT PRECEDED THIS CLOSED SESSION WILL



         4  REFLECT, THE SUBJECT OF THE INTERROGATION CONDUCTED DURING



         5  THE CLOSED SESSION HAD TO DO WITH FUTURE COMPETITIVE



         6  ACTIVITY CONTEMPLATED BY NETSCAPE VIS-A-VIS MICROSOFT, AND



         7  I DETERMINED THERE WAS GOOD CAUSE TO CLOSE THE COURT AND



         8  TAKE THAT TESTIMONY IN CLOSED SESSION.



         9           MR. WARDEN, YOUR WITNESS.



        10           MR. WARDEN:  THANK YOU, YOUR HONOR.



        11  BY MR. WARDEN:



        12  Q.   MR. BARKSDALE, WHAT IS UPSIDE MAGAZINE?



        13           THE COURT:  WHAT IS WHAT?



        14           MR. WARDEN:  UPSIDE MAGAZINE.



        15           THE WITNESS:  I DON'T KNOW THAT I KNOW A WHOLE



        16  LOT ABOUT IT.  IT'S A PUBLICATION, I THINK,



        17  TECHNOLOGY-ORIENTED, MAYBE.



        18  BY MR. WARDEN:



        19  Q.   DID YOU TELL UPSIDE IN NOVEMBER 1996 THAT NETSCAPE,



        20  QUOTE, SEES ITS FUTURE BUSINESS OPPORTUNITIES IN BUILDING



        21  SOFTWARE FOR BUSINESSES AND INSTITUTIONS AND UNIVERSITIES



        22  AND GOVERNMENTS?



        23  A.   I MAY HAVE.  SOUNDS LIKE SOMETHING I WOULD SAY.



        24  Q.   A TRUTHFUL STATEMENT?



        25  A.   NOT NECESSARILY INCLUSIVE, BUT I MIGHT HAVE SAID�
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         1  SOMETHING LIKE THAT.



         2  Q.   AND THAT FOCUS, EXPRESSED IN NOVEMBER 1996, WAS



         3  ENTIRELY CONSISTENT WITH YOUR STATEMENT TO MICROSOFT ON



         4  JUNE 2, 1995, THAT NETSCAPE'S FIRST PRIORITY AND BUSINESS



         5  FOCUS WAS ON BUILDING SOFTWARE FOR THE ENTERPRISE; ISN'T



         6  THAT CORRECT?



         7  A.   THAT'S ABSOLUTELY CORRECT, YES, SIR.



         8  Q.   AND DOESN'T NETSCAPE BUILD INTRANETS FOR ENTERPRISES?



         9  A.   WE DO.



        10  Q.   DID YOU ALSO TELL UPSIDE THAT EVEN IN NOVEMBER OF



        11  1996, NETSCAPE'S SHARE OF CURRENT SALES TO THE ENTERPRISE



        12  MARKET REMAINED AT 60 PERCENT--I'M SORRY--80 PERCENT?



        13  A.   IN THE END OF '96?



        14  Q.   YES.  BROWSERS I'M TALKING ABOUT.



        15  A.   I MAY HAVE.  I DON'T REMEMBER, BUT I MAY HAVE TOLD



        16  THEM THAT.



        17  Q.   DIDN'T YOU ALSO TELL THEM THAT, QUOTE, OUR REAL



        18  EFFORT, HOPE, DESIRE AND DREAM IS TO BECOME THE MAJOR



        19  PLAYER IN THE INTRANET BUSINESS, WHICH IS A $10 BILLION



        20  DOLLAR INDUSTRY, FAR BIGGER THAN THE BROWSER BUSINESS?



        21  A.   BILLION DOLLAR BUSINESS?



        22  Q.   YES, SIR.



        23  A.   I MAY HAVE.  THAT IS A RANGE.



        24  Q.   IS THAT AN ACCURATE STATEMENT?



        25  A.   ROUGHLY, YES, SIR.  NOBODY KNOWS ACCURATELY HOW BIG�
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         1  THESE MARKETS ARE, BUT I THINK THAT WAS AN ESTIMATE AS FAR



         2  AS THE GROUPS BACK THEN.



         3  Q.   DID YOU TELL THEM THAT YOUR STRATEGY WAS TO GET KNOWN



         4  BY PUTTING THE BROWSER OUT THERE IN EVERY WAY WE COULD?



         5  A.   I MAY HAVE.



         6  Q.   IS THAT A TRUTHFUL STATEMENT?



         7  A.   AT THE TIME, IT WOULD BE A TRUTHFUL STATEMENT, AND IT



         8  IS TRUTHFUL TODAY.



         9  Q.   LET'S GO TO PARAGRAPH 207 ON PAGES 104 AND 5 OF YOUR



        10  WRITTEN DIRECT.  NOW, WE ARE BACK ON THE SCRIPTING TOOL.



        11  A.   YES.



        12  Q.   FOR DIALUP NETWORKING IS--IS THAT THE DIALER OR THE



        13  SCRIPTING ENGINE OR SOMETHING DIFFERENT FROM EITHER OF



        14  THOSE?



        15  A.   WELL, IT WAS A SCRIPTING TOOL.  AT THAT TIME, THAT



        16  WOULD HAVE BEEN HELPFUL IN THOSE PARTICULAR EDITIONS THAT



        17  WE WERE SHIPPING PERSONAL EDITION AND THE DIALUP KIT.  THE



        18  SCRIPTING TOOL, ITSELF, HELPED US IN PERFORMING DIALING



        19  INFORMATION, BUT WAS NOT, ITSELF, THE DIALUP PRODUCT.



        20  Q.   I MAY NOT HAVE BEEN ENTIRELY CLEAR.  WE HAVE



        21  REFERENCED, BOTH IN YOUR WRITTEN DIRECT AND EARLIER IN



        22  YOUR CROSS-EXAMINATION, TO A DIALER AND THEN ALSO TO A



        23  SCRIPTING ENGINE.



        24  A.   YES, SIR.  THEY WERE TWO DIFFERENT PRODUCTS.



        25  Q.   RIGHT.  IS THIS SCRIPTING TOOL THE SCRIPTING ENGINE�
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         1  THAT WE TALKED ABOUT BEFORE?



         2  A.   YES, SIR.



         3  Q.   OKAY.  SO IT'S THE SAME THING.



         4           IS A SCRIPTING TOOL OR ENGINE PART OF A BROWSER?



         5  A.   IT CAN BE.  WE HAVE A PRODUCT WE CALL EKCMASCRIPT,



         6  USED TO BE JAVASCRIPT, THAT COMES WITH AND SUPPORTS



         7  DEVELOPMENT FOR THE BROWSER, IS ITS PRINCIPAL USE.



         8  Q.   WHAT EXACTLY WAS IT THAT YOU WERE TRYING, IN YOUR



         9  WORDS, TO LICENSE FROM MICROSOFT?



        10  A.   THERE WAS A SCRIPTING TOOL, AS I UNDERSTAND IT, THAT



        11  WE WERE TRYING TO GET THAT WOULD HELP OUR ENGINEERS



        12  DEVELOP THE USER INTERFACE FOR THE DIALUP OPERATION AND



        13  SOME OTHER FUNCTIONS, PERHAPS.



        14  Q.   AND WASN'T THAT ACTUAL CODE SOFTWARE CODE?



        15  A.   YES, IT IS.



        16  Q.   DIDN'T MICROSOFT TELL YOU THAT IT WOULD LICENSE THAT



        17  CODE, THE SCRIPTING CODE, TO NETSCAPE ON THE SAME TERMS AS



        18  IT LICENSED THE CODE TO OTHER THIRD PARTIES?



        19  A.   I DON'T KNOW IF THEY TOLD US THAT.  THE FACT IS THEY



        20  DIDN'T.



        21  Q.   DO YOU KNOW WHETHER THEY MADE TO YOU EXACTLY THE



        22  OFFER I HAVE SAID, TO LICENSE THAT CODE ON THE SAME TERMS



        23  AS THEY LICENSED IT TO OTHER PARTIES?



        24  A.   I DON'T KNOW WHAT THEY SAID.  I KNOW WE WERE TRYING



        25  TO GET A LICENSE AND HAVING A LOT OF TROUBLE, AND THAT'S�
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         1  WHAT MY EXHIBIT DEMONSTRATES.



         2  Q.   AND ISN'T IT TRUE THAT THEY MADE THE OFFER I JUST



         3  RELATED--THAT IS, TO GIVE IT TO YOU ON THE SAME TERMS AS



         4  TO WHICH THEY LICENSED IT TO OTHERS--AND YOU REJECTED THAT



         5  OFFER?



         6  A.   I DON'T KNOW THAT.



         7  Q.   ISN'T IT TRUE THAT NETSCAPE WANTED TO HAVE



         8  PREFERENTIAL TERMS BETTER THAN THOSE OFFERED TO OTHER



         9  THIRD PARTIES?



        10  A.   ALL I KNOW IS, THE PROGRAM ADMINISTRATOR HAD AGREED



        11  TO THE TERMS.  WHETHER THEY WERE PREFERENTIAL,



        12  NONPREFERENTIAL, GOOD OR BAD, THEY AGREED TO THEM, AND WE



        13  COULDN'T GET THE SIGNOFF AT THE EXECUTIVE LEVEL BECAUSE



        14  THEY MAINTAINED THAT THERE WERE OTHER THINGS GOING ON IN



        15  THIS RELATIONSHIP THAT HAD NOTHING TO DO WITH THE



        16  SCRIPTING.



        17  Q.   AND WHAT IS THE BASIS OF THAT KNOWLEDGE?



        18  A.   THE BASIS OF THAT IS SOME E-MAILS OR BACK AND FORTH



        19  BETWEEN THE COMPANIES, AND RICK SHELL E-MAIL THAT GOES



        20  THROUGH SOME OF THESE TRIALS AND TRIBULATIONS AS WELL AS



        21  THIS YOUNG MAN FREEBURG'S E-MAILS THAT I HAVE INCLUDED IN



        22  MY EXHIBIT WHO MADE THOSE POINTS, AND THE YOUNG MAN AGREED



        23  WITH HIM AND SAID, "I AM TRYING TO GET IT DONE."  HE SAID,



        24  "COME BACK TO ME.  I NEED IT VERY MUCH."  AND A WEEK OR



        25  TWO LATER, HE CAME BACK WHERE THEY DID AND SAID ONE OF THE�
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         1  MICROSOFT EXECUTIVES--THAT'S IN MY EXHIBIT--SAID, "THERE



         2  WERE SEVERAL OTHER THINGS I WANT TO TALK TO NETSCAPE



         3  ABOUT, SO I AM PUTTING A HOLD ON THIS," AND THE BASIS OF



         4  THAT WERE THESE E-MAILS.



         5  Q.   WHO WAS THAT AT MICROSOFT?



         6  A.   IF YOU WILL GIVE ME THE EXHIBIT, I WILL TELL YOU.



         7  Q.   WELL, DO YOU REMEMBER?



         8  A.   FROM THE E-MAILS, I THINK IT WAS FRED SILVERBERG, BUT



         9  I COULD BE WRONG.



        10  Q.   WHY DIDN'T YOU WRITE YOUR OWN SCRIPTING ENGINES?



        11  IT'S JUST CODE.



        12  A.   WELL, WE DID WRITE A SCRIPTING ENGINE CALLED



        13  "JAVASCRIPT," BUT FOR A DIFFERENT PURPOSE.



        14  Q.   WHY DIDN'T YOU WRITE ONE FOR THIS PURPOSE?



        15  A.   I PRESUME FOR THE SAME REASON WE HAD EARLIER ABOUT



        16  THE DIALER, THAT MICROSOFT HAD SAID THEY WERE GOING TO DO



        17  IT, WE WERE DEPENDENT ON IT.  BY THE TIME WE GOT DEPENDENT



        18  ON IT, THEN WHEN IT WASN'T DELIVERED, WE WERE HANGING OUT



        19  THERE.



        20  Q.   YOU SAY YOU PRESUMED THAT?



        21  A.   THAT'S CORRECT, AND I SHOULDN'T SAY THAT.  THAT WAS



        22  MY UNDERSTANDING.



        23  Q.   DIDN'T OTHER SOFTWARE DEVELOPERS DEVELOP THEIR OWN



        24  SCRIPTING ENGINES FOR WINDOWS 95?



        25  A.   THEY MAY HAVE.  DOESN'T MEAN WE SHOULD.�
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         1  Q.   HAVE YOU EVER HEARD OF "ROBODUNN"?



         2  A.   NO, SIR.



         3  Q.   SO, YOU DON'T KNOW WHETHER THAT'S A THIRD-PARTY



         4  SUPPLIER OF DIALUP NETWORKING SOFTWARE OR NOT?



         5  A.   I DON'T REMEMBER THAT NAME, NO.



         6  Q.   AND DO YOU KNOW WHETHER THEY MADE A DIALUP SCRIPTING



         7  TOOL FOR WINDOWS 95?



         8  A.   THEY MAY HAVE.



         9  Q.   DID YOU TRY TO LICENSE SUCH A TOOL FROM ANYONE OTHER



        10  THAN MICROSOFT?



        11  A.   THAT WAS NOT MY AREA OF WORK.  OUR ENGINEERS MAY



        12  HAVE.  THEY MAY NOT HAVE.  I HAVE NO WAY OF KNOWING.



        13  Q.   WHAT EFFORTS DID NETSCAPE MAKE TO SEE WHETHER THERE



        14  WERE OTHER SOURCES, OTHER THAN MICROSOFT, FOR THE



        15  SCRIPTING TOOL?



        16  A.   I JUST TOLD YOU.  THAT WAS SOMETHING I WASN'T



        17  INVOLVED IN.  I'M JUST GOING BY WHAT THE ENGINEERS TOLD



        18  ME.  THEY TRIED TO GET IT, THEY COULDN'T GET IT, THEY



        19  TRIED TO GET IT, AND THEY COULDN'T, SO THEY ASKED ME TO



        20  SAY SOMETHING TO SOMEBODY.



        21  Q.   DOES MICROSOFT HAVE A MONOPOLY ON SCRIPTING ENGINES?



        22  A.   I WOULDN'T KNOW.



        23  Q.   WEREN'T THERE ALTERNATIVE SOLUTIONS TO THE SCRIPTING



        24  TOOL?  FOR EXAMPLE, PPP OR SLIP?



        25  A.   PPP AND SLIP HAD BEEN AVAILABLE AS PART OF WINDOWS 95�

                                                           60



         1  FROM ITS ORIGINAL RELEASE, AND THAT WAS TWO OF THE



         2  TECHNOLOGIES I MENTIONED.  I DON'T BELIEVE EITHER OF THOSE



         3  IS REFERRED TO AS A SCRIPTING TOOL.  THE "P" IN THE END OF



         4  BOTH OF THOSE STANDS FOR "PROTOCOL."



         5  Q.   RIGHT.  AND PPP IS POINT-TO-POINT PROTOCOL?



         6  A.   THAT'S CORRECT.



         7  Q.   AND THAT WAS AN OPEN PROTOCOL THAT HAD BEEN DEVELOPED



         8  BY THE INTERNET ENGINEERS TASK FORCE IN 1991; ISN'T THAT



         9  CORRECT?



        10  A.   IT SEEMS LOGICAL, YES.



        11  Q.   AND THAT PROTOCOL PROVIDED A MEANS OF DOING DIALUP,



        12  DID IT NOT?



        13  A.   IT WAS A DIALUP PROTOCOL, BUT IT DOESN'T NECESSARILY



        14  MEAN IT PROVIDED A MEANS, BUT I THINK WE ARE QUIBBLING



        15  NOW.



        16  Q.   AND BOTH MICROSOFT AND NETSCAPE HAD USED IT FOR



        17  DIALUP; ISN'T THAT SO?



        18  A.   YES, SIR.



        19  Q.   AND THE SLIP OR SERIAL-LINE INTERNET PROTOCOL, DID



        20  YOUR WEB-BROWSING SOFTWARE IMPLEMENT SLIP?



        21  A.   I BELIEVE WE DID SUPPORT THE SLIP PROTOCOL, YES, SIR.



        22  Q.   AND ALONG WITH PPP, WASN'T THAT THE DOMINANT DIALUP



        23  SCENARIO IN USE IN 1995 AND 1996?



        24  A.   I BELIEVE THAT'S CORRECT.



        25  Q.   AND THE SCRIPTING TOOL, OR ENGINE, THAT YOU REFERRED�
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         1  TO IN YOUR DIRECT TESTIMONY, WAS, AT THAT TIME, A LEGACY



         2  TECHNOLOGY USEFUL ONLY FOR A HANDFUL OF ISP'S; ISN'T THAT



         3  TRUE?



         4  A.   DOESN'T MATTER.



         5  Q.   CAN YOU NAME ANY ISP'S OR OEM'S FOR WHOM YOU STILL



         6  NEEDED A SCRIPTING TOOL IN 1996?



         7  A.   I TOLD YOU IN RESPONSE, I THINK, TO EVERY QUESTION,



         8  THIS WAS BELOW MY RADAR IN THE WORKING OF IT.  I KNOW THAT



         9  MR. FREEBURG, WHO WAS RESPONSIBLE FOR THIS, WAS VERY



        10  ANXIOUS TO GET IT AND WAS BEING GIVEN THE RUN-AROUND BY



        11  MICROSOFT.  IT REALLY DOESN'T MATTER WHY HE WANTED IT.



        12  THEY HAD PROMISED IT TO HIM.  THE MAN WHO WAS WORKING WITH



        13  HIM SAID HE HAD IT READY TO GO AND COULDN'T GET IT FREED



        14  UP BY THE EXECUTIVE BECAUSE OF THESE OTHER MATTERS.  THERE



        15  MAY HAVE BEEN ONLY ONE ISP SO FAR AS I KNOW.



        16  Q.   NOW, MR. BARKSDALE, IF YOU HAD RECEIVED THE KIND OF



        17  UNLAWFUL PROPOSALS AND THREATS ON JUNE 21 TO WHICH YOU



        18  HAVE TESTIFIED, WHY IN THE WORLD WOULD YOU RELY ON



        19  MICROSOFT FOR ANY TOOL OR CODE THAT YOU COULD GET



        20  ELSEWHERE OR SUBSTITUTE SOMETHING ELSE FOR?



        21  A.   I COULD THINK OF A NUMBER OF REASONS.



        22  Q.   WELL, LET'S HEAR THEM.



        23  A.   MAYBE IT WAS CHEAPER.  MAYBE WE THOUGHT IT WAS



        24  BETTER.  MAYBE IT WAS NECESSARY FOR PARTICULAR A FEATURE



        25  OR FUNCTION THAT WE COULDN'T GET SOMEWHERE OUTSIDE.�
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         1           IF YOU GOT THE ENGINEERS IN HERE THEY COULD



         2  PROBABLY GIVE YOU SOME OTHER REASONS, BUT IT WAS NOT TO



         3  SPITE MICROSOFT THAT WE ASKED FOR THIS.  WE WERE TOLD WE



         4  COULD GET IT.  WE WERE WAITING ON IT.  IF YOU READ THE



         5  E-MAILS, IT LOOKS LIKE A CLASSIC RUN-AROUND.



         6           AND WE DID MANY OTHER THINGS WITH MICROSOFT AFTER



         7  THAT MEETING AND TO THIS DAY THAT ARE NOT NECESSARILY



         8  COMBATIVE OR OUT OF LINE OR MEAN-SPIRITED ON BOTH SIDES.



         9  AND WE HAVE NO INTEREST IN NETSCAPE--IN MOONING THE GIANT.



        10  I MEAN, IT'S JUST NOT THE WAY THE BUSINESS IS DONE.  WE



        11  ARE VERY DEPENDENT ON MICROSOFT FOR A NUMBER OF THINGS,



        12  AND SO WE TRY TO BEHAVE AND BE APPROPRIATE IN THAT



        13  BEHAVIOR.



        14  Q.   AND MICROSOFT HAS, IN TURN, PROVIDED YOU WITH BETA



        15  RELEASES, INFORMATION, SKP'S AND SO ON, ABOUT ITS NEW



        16  OPERATING SYSTEM VERSIONS AS THEY ARE TESTED AND BROUGHT



        17  TO MARKET; ISN'T THAT TRUE?



        18  A.   IN SOME, BUT NOT ALL CASES, THAT'S TRUE.



        19  Q.   WHAT CASES NO?



        20  A.   I IDENTIFIED THOSE IN THE EXHIBIT.  I TALK ABOUT



        21  THOSE.



        22  Q.   OTHER THAN THE DIALER AND THE SCRIPTING ENGINE FOR



        23  WINDOWS 95 FOR A PERIOD IN THE SUMMER OF 1995, IS MY



        24  STATEMENT TRUE?



        25  A.   IN THE SUMMER OF 1995, THOSE WERE THE TWO PRINCIPAL�
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         1  THINGS THAT WERE BROUGHT TO MY ATTENTION THAT WE NEEDED TO



         2  GET OUR PRODUCT OUT.  THERE WERE OTHER ITEMS LATER, BUT IN



         3  THE SUMMER OF '95, THAT WAS MY UNDERSTANDING--FROM MY



         4  UNDERSTANDING.  I MEAN, THERE MAY HAVE BEEN SOME OTHER



         5  THINGS, BUT THOSE ARE THE ONES--



         6  Q.   MR. BARKSDALE, YOU CAN ONLY TESTIFY TO THINGS YOU



         7  KNOW ABOUT.



         8           WHAT WERE THE OTHER ITEMS LATER?



         9  A.   WELL, I BELIEVE THERE IS AN E-MAIL FROM MR. SHELL,



        10  RICK SHELL, WHO WAS HEAD OF ENGINEERING, BACK TO FOLKS AT



        11  MICROSOFT A YEAR LATER THAT IDENTIFIED TWO OR THREE OTHER



        12  TECHNOLOGIES THAT WE WERE TROUBLED BY AT THAT TIME, TRYING



        13  TO GET THAT, QUITE FRANKLY, ARE AGAIN BELOW MY TECHNICAL



        14  RADAR OF UNDERSTANDING EXACTLY WHAT THEY WERE, BUT I KNOW



        15  DR. SHELL WAS FRUSTRATED BY IT.



        16  Q.   DID YOU GET THEM?



        17  A.   I DON'T KNOW THE TIMING OF GETTING THEM.  I KNOW THEY



        18  WERE LATE AT THE TIME.  RICK WAS COMPLAINING ABOUT THEM.



        19  Q.   DO YOU KNOW WHETHER YOU GOT THEM AFTER ANYONE ELSE?



        20  A.   I KNOW THAT THE SCRIPTING ENGINE WE GOT AFTER THE



        21  REGULAR ISV'S HAD GOTTEN IT BECAUSE IT WAS DOWNLOADABLE



        22  OFF THE WEB, AND WE HAD NOT BEEN ABLE TO GET IT.



        23  Q.   MR. BARKSDALE, WE LEFT THE SCRIPTING ENGINE A LITTLE



        24  WHILE AGO--



        25  A.   BUT THAT WAS IN THE SUMMER OF '97--EXCUSE ME, '96, A�
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         1  YEAR LATER.  YOU ASKED ME OTHER THINGS.



         2  Q.   OTHER THINGS AFTER THAT.



         3  A.   THE PROBLEM THE NEXT SUMMER WAS THE LICENSE FOR IT



         4  BECAUSE NOW WE WERE TRYING TO DISTRIBUTE IT, AND WITHOUT



         5  THE LICENSE WE COULDN'T RESELL A PRODUCT WITHOUT THIS



         6  LICENSE FOR THE SCRIPTING ENGINE.  IT WASN'T JUST THE



         7  TECHNOLOGY, AND SO THAT WAS THE NEXT SUMMER.



         8           NOW, IF YOU ASKED ME--



         9  Q.   SUMMER OF '96, OKAY.  THAT WAS STILL THE SCRIPTING



        10  ENGINE; IS THAT RIGHT?



        11  A.   THAT OLD SCRIPTING ENGINE, YES, SIR.



        12  Q.   AND YOU CAN'T NAME ANYBODY, ISP OR OEM, FOR WHOM YOU



        13  STILL NEEDED THE SCRIPTING ENGINE IN 1996; IS THAT



        14  CORRECT?



        15  A.   SIR, THAT IS SUCH A DETAILED QUESTION IT WOULD BE



        16  IMPOSSIBLE FOR ME TO BE ABLE TO NAME THAT, AND YOU KNOW



        17  THAT.



        18  Q.   I DON'T KNOW IT.



        19  A.   WELL, IT WOULD BE.



        20  Q.   NOW, THERE IS A LICENSE IN THE SUMMER OF 1997.



        21  ANYTHING ELSE--



        22  A.   I'M SORRY.  THAT WAS THE SUMMER OF '96.



        23  Q.   I'M SORRY, SUMMER OF 1996.  I MISSPOKE.  YOU



        24  INITIALLY DID, AND THEN I INITIALLY DID AS WELL.



        25           AFTER THE SUMMER OF '96, AND MICROSOFT HAS GIVEN�
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         1  YOU ALL THE BETA VERSIONS, THEY HAVE GIVEN YOU THE SK--I'M



         2  SORRY, THE SOFTWARE DEVELOPER KITS, THE SDKS, YOU



         3  PARTICIPATE IN THEIR PROGRAMS FOR ISV'S--ISN'T THAT ALL



         4  CORRECT?



         5  A.   I BELIEVE THAT WE HAVE ONGOING RELATIONSHIPS, AS I



         6  MENTIONED, WITH MICROSOFT THAT, BY AND LARGE, SEEM TO



         7  ACCOMPLISH THOSE THINGS THAT WE HAVE TO DEPEND ON



         8  MICROSOFT FOR, BUT YOU UNDERSTAND NOW THAT THEY HAVE



         9  EMBEDDED THE BROWSER IN WINDOWS 98.  THERE IS LOT LESS



        10  THAT WE ARE DEPENDENT ON FOR, BUT AS FAR AS I KNOW, THOSE



        11  WOULD BE THE SPECIFIC ISSUES THAT WE HAD AT THE TIME.



        12  Q.   ALL RIGHT.  AND YOUR TUNEUP KIT FOR WINDOWS 98 USES



        13  THAT EMBEDDED BROWSER, AS YOU CALL IT, DOES IT NOT?



        14  WINDOWS 98?



        15  A.   IT USES WINDOWS 98.  I DON'T KNOW IF IT USES THE



        16  EMBEDDED BROWSER, PER SE, BUT IT FUNCTIONS WITH THE



        17  EMBEDDED BROWSER, I THINK, WOULD BE A MORE ACCURATE TERM.



        18  Q.   THAT'S FINE, AND THAT'S A SMALL AMOUNT OF CODE THAT



        19  ENABLES YOU TO PROVIDE BROWSING FUNCTIONALITY TO YOUR



        20  CUSTOMERS; ISN'T THAT SO?



        21  A.   THAT WOULD BE CORRECT, TO MICROSOFT'S ADVANTAGE.



        22  Q.   LET'S GO TO PARAGRAPH 213 ON PAGE 107.  WELL, IT



        23  STARTS ONE LINE AT THE BOTTOM OF 106.



        24  A.   213?



        25  Q.   YES.�
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         1           AND IN ABOUT THE FIFTH LINE, FROM THE THIRD TO



         2  FIFTH LINE, YOU SAY, BASICALLY, THAT NETSCAPE WAS



         3  EFFECTIVELY FORECLOSED FOR A PERIOD OF TIME FROM DOING



         4  BUSINESS WITH THOSE ISP'S SUCH AS SPRYNET THAT REQUIRED



         5  SCRIPTING.  DO YOU SEE THAT?



         6  A.   YES, I DO.



         7  Q.   HOW LONG WAS THAT PERIOD OF TIME?



         8  A.   I DON'T KNOW.  IT SEEMED LIKE IT WAS, BASED ON THE



         9  E-MAILS THAT I SAW, SOME PERIOD OF TIME.  I DON'T KNOW HOW



        10  LONG IT WAS.



        11  Q.   WELL, ONE MONTH?  SIX MONTHS?



        12  A.   I DON'T KNOW.



        13  Q.   YOU DON'T KNOW.



        14           WHEN DID YOU FIRST START WRITING YOUR OWN



        15  SCRIPTING ENGINE?



        16  A.   FOR OTHER PURPOSES, WE BEGAN JAVASCRIPT PRIOR TO



        17  THIS, AND THEN "BRENDAN IKE."



        18  Q.   AT THE TOP OF THIS PAGE, 107, YOU SAID YOU WERE NEVER



        19  ABLE TO LICENSE THE SCRIPTING TOOL, BUT THEN YOU CONTINUE,



        20  YOU WERE EVENTUALLY ABLE TO WORK AROUND THIS PROBLEM.  HOW



        21  DID YOU WORK AROUND IT?



        22  A.   THERE MAY HAVE BEEN SOME SPECIAL HACK THAT WE



        23  PERFORMED WITHOUT USING A SCRIPTING TOOL.



        24  Q.   DO YOU KNOW HOW YOU WORKED AROUND IT?



        25  A.   I DO NOT KNOW HOW WE WORKED AROUND IT, OTHER THAN I�
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         1  WAS TOLD WE GOT AROUND IT WITHOUT THE TOOL.



         2  Q.   LET'S GO TO PARAGRAPH 214.



         3  A.   MAYBE I SHOULD CLARIFY.  A HACK WOULD JUST BE A



         4  SPECIAL-PURPOSE PROGRAM.



         5  Q.   IS THE SCRIPTING ENGINE, ITSELF, A SPECIAL-PURPOSE



         6  PROGRAM?



         7  A.   IT COULD BE ALSO, BUT IT COULDN'T BE GENERALLY CALLED



         8  A HACK.



         9  Q.   WELL, WHAT'S THE DIFFERENCE BETWEEN THE



        10  SPECIAL-PURPOSE PROGRAM AND A HACK--



        11  A.   I WAS GUILTY OF USING A TERM THAT MAY NOT GENERALLY



        12  BE KNOWN, AND I WAS JUST TRYING TO EXPLAIN IT.



        13  Q.   AND 214 YOU REFER TO THE MICROSOFT DEVELOPERS



        14  NETWORK.



        15  A.   YES.



        16  Q.   THAT'S USED BY ISV'S DEVELOPING SOFTWARE FOR WINDOWS,



        17  IS IT NOT?



        18  A.   YES.



        19  Q.   AND AM I CORRECT THAT WHAT YOU'RE SAYING IS THAT THE



        20  SOFTWARE WRITER DEVELOPING SOFTWARE FOR WINDOWS NEEDED TO



        21  HAVE MICROSOFT'S WEB-BROWSING SOFTWARE TO VIEW CONTENT ON



        22  MICROSOFT'S OWN DEVELOPERS NETWORK; IS THAT YOUR



        23  TESTIMONY?



        24  A.   YES.



        25  Q.   AND AT THAT TIME MICROSOFT'S WEB BROWSING SOFTWARE�
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         1  WAS FREE; ISN'T THAT CORRECT?



         2  A.   YES.



         3  Q.   AND THE NEED THAT YOU TALK ABOUT HERE WAS CONFINED TO



         4  SOFTWARE DEVELOPERS; ISN'T THAT CORRECT?



         5  A.   WELL, ANYONE WHO WOULD USE THAT, BUT GENERALLY THAT



         6  WOULD BE A SOFTWARE DEVELOPER.



         7  Q.   CAN YOU NOW VIEW CONTENT ON THE MICROSOFT DEVELOPER'S



         8  NETWORK WITH NETSCAPE WEB-BROWSING SOFTWARE?



         9  A.   I BELIEVE YOU CAN.



        10  Q.   MR. BARKSDALE, DO YOU HAVE A PERSONAL HOME PAGE?



        11  A.   I DO.



        12  Q.   IS ITS WEB ADDRESS HTTP PEOPLE.NETSCAPE.COMJIMB?



        13  A.   THAT WOULD BE ONE OF THEM.



        14  Q.   ONE OF THEM?



        15  A.   I HAVE, I THINK, TWO OR THREE.



        16           MR. WARDEN:  YOUR HONOR, I ASK TO HAVE PLACED



        17  BEFORE THE WITNESS WHAT HAS BEEN PRE-MARKED AS DEFENDANT'S



        18  EXHIBIT 62.



        19           (DOCUMENT HANDED TO THE WITNESS.)



        20  BY MR. WARDEN:



        21  Q.   MR. BARKSDALE, IF I TRY TO VIEW YOUR HOME PAGE AND



        22  LEARN ALL ABOUT YOU WITH MICROSOFT'S WINDOWS 98



        23  WEB-BROWSING SOFTWARE, WHAT HAPPENS?



        24  A.   APPARENTLY, ON THIS PARTICULAR ONE, WHICH IS A DEMO



        25  OF SOME OF OUR TECHNOLOGY--IT'S NOT REALLY FAIR TO SAY�
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         1  IT'S MY PERSONAL HOME PAGE--IT'S A DEMONSTRATION OF OUR



         2  TECHNOLOGY THAT USES VARIOUS FRAMES, WINDOWS AND OTHER



         3  TECHNIQUES--LAYERING IS ONE OF THEM--YOU WOULD WANT TO USE



         4  OUR PRODUCT TO GET A DEMONSTRATION, BUT THAT'S FAR



         5  DIFFERENT FROM A DEVELOPER ONE JUST TO GET THE DEVELOPMENT



         6  PROGRAM.



         7  Q.   I DIDN'T ASK ANYTHING ABOUT A COMPARISON TO ANYTHING.



         8  PLEASE CONFINE YOURSELF TO ANSWERING MY QUESTIONS.



         9  A.   IF YOU DON'T USE MY PRODUCT, I DON'T WANT YOU TO READ



        10  MY HOME PAGE.



        11  Q.   ALL RIGHT.  DO YOU RECOGNIZE DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT 62?



        12  A.   I HAVE NEVER GOTTEN THIS MESSAGE BECAUSE I USE THE



        13  NETSCAPE NAVIGATOR.



        14  Q.   I BELIEVE YOU JUST TESTIFIED THAT YOUR HOME PAGE IS A



        15  DEMONSTRATION OF NETSCAPE TECHNOLOGY; IS THAT CORRECT?



        16  A.   YES, IT IS.  THIS PARTICULAR HOME PAGE.



        17  Q.   YES.



        18  A.   YOU WILL FIND THERE ARE A COUPLE OF DIFFERENT HOME



        19  PAGES.



        20  Q.   THERE ARE LOTS OF HOME PAGES?



        21  A.   ONE HAS MY BIO FOR PEOPLE FOR THE PRESS, AND IT DOES



        22  NOT REQUIRE THIS.



        23           MR. WARDEN:  YOUR HONOR, I OFFER DEFENDANT'S



        24  EXHIBIT 62.



        25           MR. BOIES:  NO OBJECTION, YOUR HONOR.�
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         1           THE COURT:  DEFENDANT'S 62 IS ADMITTED.



         2                         (DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT NO. 62 WAS



         3                          ADMITTED INTO EVIDENCE.)



         4  BY MR. WARDEN:



         5  Q.   NOW, IF SOMEONE DOWNLOADS COMMUNICATOR TO VIEW YOUR



         6  HOME PAGE, WILL COMMUNICATOR THEN PROMPT THE USER TO MAKE



         7  COMMUNICATOR THE USER'S DEFAULT BROWSING SOFTWARE?



         8  A.   IT MAY REQUEST THAT.



         9  Q.   NOW, WOULD YOU CONSIDER THAT TO BE INAPPROPRIATE?



        10  A.   WE GIVE YOU THE OPTION OF MAKING IT THE DEFAULT, BUT



        11  I DON'T THINK IT WOULD BE INAPPROPRIATE TO ASK YOU IF YOU



        12  WANT TO MAKE IT YOUR DEFAULT.



        13  Q.   OKAY.  LET'S GO TO PAGE 112 AND 13, PARAGRAPH 222,



        14  BUT THE PART I'M INTERESTED IN IS ON 113.  AT THE TOP



        15  WHERE YOU TALK ABOUT A DROP IN YOUR BROWSER MARKET



        16  SHARE--DO YOU SEE THAT?



        17  A.   YES.



        18  Q.   IS, IN YOUR JUDGMENT, ANY PORTION OF THE DECLINE IN



        19  WHAT YOU CALL YOUR BROWSER MARKET SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO



        20  THE IMPROVEMENTS IN THE QUALITY OF MICROSOFT'S



        21  WEB-BROWSING SOFTWARE IN WINDOWS 95 AND WINDOWS 98?



        22  A.   IS ANY OF IT DUE TO THAT?  YES, I WOULD SAY SOME OF



        23  IT IS DUE TO THAT.



        24  Q.   WHO PERFORMED THE SO-CALLED MARKET-SHARE ANALYSIS SET



        25  FORTH IN YOUR DIRECT TESTIMONY?�
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         1  A.   WELL, WE--I THINK I MENTIONED THIS BACK EARLIER IN MY



         2  TESTIMONY.  MAYBE I DIDN'T.  WE RUN AN INTERNAL WEEKLY



         3  SUMMARY OF MARKET SHARE BASED ON ANALYSIS OF, I BELIEVE,



         4  22 WEB SITES THAT ARE FAIRLY ACTIVELY TRADED, AND WE HAVE



         5  BEEN TRACKING THAT, OH, FOR ALMOST SINCE THE BEGINNING OF



         6  THE COMPANY, AND THAT, THEN--THAT, ALONG WITH OTHER DATA.



         7           WE ALSO READ A LOT OF THE STATISTICS LIKE YOU SEE



         8  FROM ZONA AND OTHERS AND TRY TO PUT A PUT A LITTLE



         9  KENTUCKY WINDAGE ON IT AND GET THEM TO LINE UP.



        10  Q.   DID YOU DISCUSS THE MARKET-SHARE ANALYSIS IN THIS



        11  PARAGRAPH OF YOUR TESTIMONY WITH THE DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE



        12  BEFORE THE TESTIMONY WAS FILED?



        13  A.   NO, SIR, I DID NOT.



        14  Q.   LET'S GO TO PARAGRAPH 227, PAGE 115.  HAS THE



        15  STATEMENT MADE IN THE LAST SENTENCE OF THAT PARAGRAPH



        16  ALWAYS BEEN TRUE?



        17  A.   "THAT OEM AND ISP CHANNELS"--IS THAT THE SENTENCE?



        18  Q.   YES.



        19  A.   --"WHICH ARE, BY FAR, THE EASIEST WAY FOR BEGINNING



        20  USERS TO OBTAIN A BROWSER HAVE BECOME THE MOST IMPORTANT



        21  SOURCES OF CURRENT DISTRIBUTION," HAS THAT ALWAYS BEEN



        22  TRUE?



        23  Q.   RIGHT.



        24  A.   NO, SIR, I DON'T THINK THAT WAS ALWAYS TRUE BECAUSE



        25  THERE WAS A PERIOD WHEN OEM WASN'T EVEN A CHANNEL.  I�
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         1  THINK IT'S MORE TRUE THAN NOT THAT ISP'S HAVE LONG



         2  DISTRIBUTED PRODUCTS LIKE THESE, BUT I DON'T THINK IT'S



         3  ALWAYS BEEN TRUE.



         4  Q.   WHEN DID THIS COME TO BE TRUE?



         5  A.   WELL, AS THE INTERNET ITSELF MATURED AND BEGAN TO



         6  ATTRACT WHAT IS CALLED EARLY-MAJORITY USERS, WHICH WOULD



         7  BE THE FIRST HALF OF THE BIG WAVE OF MIDDLE-MARKET USERS



         8  AS OPPOSED TO EARLY ADOPTERS, MORE AND MORE BEGAN TO GET



         9  THE PRODUCT THROUGH THESE NEW CHANNELS DISTRIBUTED BY



        10  ISP'S AND OEM'S.  AND AS THAT BECAME AVAILABLE--FOR



        11  INSTANCE, IF YOU GET YOUR PRODUCT FROM AN OEM, YOU ARE



        12  MUCH LESS LIKELY TO GO OUT ON THE INTERNET TO GET THE



        13  PRODUCT.  IF YOU GET IT FROM AN ISP, IT'S JUST LOGICAL



        14  THAT YOU WOULD NOT BE TROUBLED TO GO OUT ON THE INTERNET



        15  AND GET THE PRODUCT.



        16           TODAY, ALL I WAS TRYING TO SAY HERE IS, IN THIS



        17  MATURING MARKET WHERE YOU ARE GETTING TO, AS I SAID



        18  EARLIER, LESS SOPHISTICATED USERS, THEY TEND TO TAKE THE



        19  EASIEST ROAD, WHICH IS OEM'S AND ISP'S.  AND AS THE MARKET



        20  HAS CONTINUED TO MATURE, THAT PROCESS HAS TAKEN PLACE.



        21  Q.   WOULD YOU HAVE MADE THE SAME STATEMENT IF YOU HAD



        22  FILED THIS WRITTEN DIRECT TESTIMONY WITH THE COURT A YEAR



        23  AGO, OR 18 MONTHS AGO?



        24  A.   THAT OEM'S AND ISP'S--



        25  Q.   HAVE BECOME THE MOST IMPORTANT SOURCES OF CURRENT�
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         1  DISTRIBUTION.



         2  A.   I DON'T KNOW.  THEY WOULD HAVE BEEN VERY IMPORTANT A



         3  YEAR AGO.  THEY'RE MORE IMPORTANT TODAY.  SOME COULD



         4  ARGUE--IN FACT, I THINK MICROSOFT, IN ITS RELEASE OF THE



         5  WHITE PAPER PUT OUT A COUPLE OF WEEKS AGO, SAYS MORE THAN



         6  50 PERCENT OF THE CHANNEL IS NOW OEM AND ISP.  I DON'T



         7  KNOW IF A YEAR AGO I WOULD HAVE KNOWN IT WAS MORE THAN 50



         8  PERCENT.



         9  Q.   WHAT DO YOU THINK IT WAS A YEAR AGO?



        10  A.   FOR THE OVERALL DISTRIBUTION OR OF OUR PRODUCT?



        11  Q.   WELL, OVERALL.



        12  A.   OVERALL, I WOULD THINK THEY WOULD HAVE BEEN VERY



        13  IMPORTANT.  I DON'T KNOW THAT I WOULD KNOW THE PERCENTAGE,



        14  IF THAT'S WHAT YOU'RE ASKING.



        15  Q.   OKAY.  NOW, IN AUGUST OF 1997, DID YOU AND MIKE HOMER



        16  GIVE AN INTERVIEW TO THE SAN JOSE MERCURY NEWS?



        17  A.   WE MIGHT HAVE.



        18           I MEAN, WE TALKED TO THE SAN JOSE MERCURY NEWS.



        19  Q.   HOW ABOUT THE AUSTIN AMERICAN STATESMAN?



        20  A.   I GIVE A LOT OF INTERVIEWS.  I MAY HAVE.



        21  Q.   OKAY.  DID MIKE HOMER TELL A REPORTER THAT THE MARKET



        22  REALITY--THIS IS IN AUGUST OF '97--WAS THAT FEWER THAN TEN



        23  PERCENT OF ALL USERS OF EITHER NETSCAPE OR MICROSOFT



        24  WEB-BROWSING SOFTWARE RECEIVED THAT SOFTWARE BUNDLED ON



        25  THE HARD DISK?�
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         1  A.   FEWER THAN TEN PERCENT, HE MAY HAVE TOLD THEM FOR OUR



         2  USERS.  I DON'T KNOW IF HE SAID FOR BOTH, BUT, I MEAN, YOU



         3  MAY HAVE AN ARTICLE THAT SAYS THAT.  IT WOULD PROBABLY



         4  HAVE BEEN TRUE FOR OUR USERS, BUT NOT FOR MICROSOFT'S



         5  USERS AT THAT TIME.  I WOULD PROBABLY TAKE ISSUE WITH



         6  THAT.



         7  Q.   AND DIDN'T MR. HOMER ALSO SAY TO A REPORTER THAT MORE



         8  THAN 70 PERCENT OF ALL THE USERS GET THEIR WEB-BROWSING



         9  SOFTWARE EITHER BY DOWNLOADING IT OR BY MAKING AN



        10  INDEPENDENT PURCHASE CHOICE?



        11  A.   AGAIN, HE MAY HAVE SAID THAT FOR OUR PRODUCT.  I



        12  DON'T KNOW THAT IT WOULD BE AT ALL TRUE FOR ALL PRODUCTS



        13  AT THAT TIME.



        14  Q.   AND JUST TO BE CLEAR, BY AUGUST OF 1997, MICROSOFT'S



        15  WEB-BROWSING SOFTWARE WAS PART OF WINDOWS, IT WAS FREE,



        16  THE AOL DEAL WAS IN PLACE, AND THE VARIOUS ISP AND ICP



        17  CONTRACTS YOU HAVE DESCRIBED IN YOUR WRITTEN TESTIMONY



        18  WERE IN PLACE; ISN'T THAT CORRECT?



        19  A.   THAT'S WHERE I THINK HOMER WAS WRONG.  IT IS CORRECT



        20  BY THAT TIME MOST OF THESE THINGS HAD BEEN DONE, AND WE



        21  HAD DROPPED 20 POINTS OF SHARE THE PRIOR YEAR PRIMARILY



        22  BECAUSE WE HAD PRETTY MUCH LOST THE OEM AND ISP CHANNELS



        23  IN THE FALL OF '97, WHICH IS, I GUESS, WHEN YOU'RE SAYING



        24  HOMER GAVE THAT INTERVIEW.



        25  Q.   WELL, DO YOU RECALL BEING ASKED BY A REPORTER FOR THE�
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         1  MERCURY NEWS:



         2                "QUESTION:  YOUR MARKET SHARE IN BROWSERS



         3           HAS SLID AND CONTINUES TO SLIDE.  HOW CAN YOU



         4           GROW?"



         5           AND GIVING THIS ANSWER:



         6                ANSWER:  "WE ARE NOT IN THE BROWSING WARS AS



         7           A MAJOR CORPORATE STRATEGY.  WE ARE AN ENTERPRISE



         8           SOFTWARE COMPANY.  WE DO UNDERSTAND THAT PART OF



         9           OUR ORIGINAL SUCCESS AND PART OF OUR ORIGINAL



        10           STRATEGY WAS TO GET KNOWN BY GETTING THE BROWSER



        11           OUT EVERYWHERE, AND THAT WAS A WAY OF



        12           ESTABLISHING OUR BRAND WITHOUT SPENDING MONEY."



        13           DOES THAT SOUND LIKE A STATEMENT YOU WOULD HAVE



        14  MADE?



        15  A.   ABSOLUTELY, AND DOESN'T CONFLICT WITH ANYTHING I HAVE



        16  SAID IN MY TESTIMONY.



        17  Q.   AND THEN IN THE SAME INTERVIEW, THE TWO OF YOU, YOU



        18  RECALL, WERE ASKED THE FOLLOWING QUESTION:



        19                "WHAT PRECISELY IS IT THAT MICROSOFT DOES



        20           THAT THREATENS NETSCAPE AND VIOLATES ANTITRUST



        21           LAWS?"



        22           THE ANSWER FROM YOU:



        23                "THE SPECIFIC COMPLAINT HAS TO DO WITH



        24           EXCLUSIONARY LICENSING PRACTICES.  IN OTHER



        25           WORDS, THEY COULD BE DISTRIBUTED ON A PC, LET'S�
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         1           JUST SAY, FOR $100 PER PC FOR WINDOWS 95, AND



         2           THEN THEY SAID WE WANT YOU TO CARRY IE EXPLORER,



         3           AND IF YOU DO THAT, WE WILL CHARGE YOU $95



         4           INSTEAD OF A HUNDRED DOLLARS.  AND THEN I WILL



         5           ALSO GIVE YOU ANOTHER INCENTIVE IF YOU EXCLUDE



         6           NETSCAPE FROM BEING ON THE SAME HARD DRIVE."



         7           DOES THAT SOUND LIKE--DO YOU REMEMBER SAYING



         8  THAT?



         9  A.   I MAY HAVE.  THAT'S THE NCR COMPLAINT.



        10  Q.   AND THEN MR. HOMER IS SAYING IN RESPONSE TO THE SAME



        11  QUESTION, "BUT THIS IS IRRELEVANT IN THE MARKET.  THE



        12  MARKET REALITY IS LESS THAN TEN PERCENT OF OUR CUSTOMERS,



        13  AND MICROSOFT'S CUSTOMERS GET THEIR BROWSER BUNDLED ON THE



        14  HARD DISK.  MORE THAN 70 PERCENT OF THEM GETTING IT EITHER



        15  BY DOWNLOADING IT FROM THE INTERNET OR MAKING AN



        16  INDEPENDENT PURCHASE CHOICE."



        17           DO YOU RECALL HIS SAYING THAT TO THE SAN JOSE



        18  MERCURY NEWS IN YOUR PRESENCE?



        19  A.   I DON'T RECALL HIM SAYING THAT, BUT HE MAY HAVE SAID



        20  THAT, AND I WOULD DISAGREE WITH HIM.



        21  Q.   AND IF HE SAID IT TO THE PRESS IN YOUR PRESENCE,



        22  WOULD YOU HAVE CORRECTED IT IF IT WERE WRONG?



        23  A.   NO, BECAUSE I DON'T THINK I NEED TO SIT THERE AND



        24  ARGUE WITH MY EXECUTIVE IN FRONT OF THE NEWSPAPER.



        25  Q.   LET'S GO TO PAGE 120, PARAGRAPH 239.�
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         1  A.   I'M SORRY?  WHAT PAGE?



         2  Q.   PAGE 120, PARAGRAPH 239.



         3           YOU SEE THE SECOND SENTENCE WHERE YOU SAY YOU MAY



         4  HAVE MADE SOME DECISIONS THAT, "IN HINDSIGHT I MIGHT NOT



         5  HAVE MADE," ET CETERA, "SO DOES EVERY COMPANY, INCLUDING



         6  MICROSOFT"?  DO YOU SEE THAT?



         7  A.   YES, I DO.



         8  Q.   IN HINDSIGHT, MR. BARKSDALE, WOULD YOU HAVE HAD FEWER



         9  PRODUCT RELEASES OF YOUR BROWSING SOFTWARE?



        10  A.   WELL, LOOK, IT'S A WHOLE DECISION THEORY ABOUT



        11  HINDSIGHT.  IF I KNEW THEN WHAT I KNOW NOW, I MIGHT HAVE,



        12  BUT PEOPLE WHO SIT HERE AND SECOND-GUESS THOSE THINGS WILL



        13  GO CRAZY.  SO, AT THAT TIME, I THOUGHT THE DECISION WAS



        14  RIGHT.  TODAY, WITH THE BENEFIT OF PERFECT HINDSIGHT, I



        15  COULD THINK OF A COUPLE OF THINGS WE MIGHT HAVE DONE



        16  DIFFERENTLY IN TERMS OF PRODUCT RELEASES.



        17  Q.   WELL, YOU INTRODUCED HINDSIGHT HERE IN YOUR DIRECT



        18  TESTIMONY, DID YOU NOT?



        19  A.   I SAID THAT.



        20  Q.   NOW, IN HINDSIGHT, WOULD YOU HAVE CHANGED THE NAME OF



        21  YOUR SOFTWARE LESS OFTEN?



        22  A.   NO, I DON'T THINK SO.



        23  Q.   IN HINDSIGHT, WOULD YOU HAVE MADE FEWER CORPORATE



        24  ACQUISITIONS?



        25  A.   AGAIN, I STAND BY WHAT I SAID.  AT THE TIME THAT WE�
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         1  MADE THEM, I THINK IT'S RIGHT.  THERE IS A WHOLE THEORY,



         2  THERE IS A BOOK ON THIS, PRIMARILY, WITH STOCK-MARKET



         3  TRADING AND OTHER DECISIONS, WHERE WE FORGET, AS HUMANS,



         4  THE CURRENT EVENTS AT THE TIME.  ALL I'M SAYING IS, LIKE



         5  ANY EXECUTIVE OR ANY PERSON, I'M SURE I HAVE MADE



         6  MISTAKES, BUT I DON'T SIT HERE TODAY AND THINK THROUGH IF



         7  I KNEW THEN WHAT I KNOW NOW WOULD I HAVE DONE IT.  SO I



         8  DON'T KNOW, IS THE BEST ANSWER.



         9  Q.   YOU MAY HAVE MADE SOME DECISIONS THAT, IN HINDSIGHT,



        10  YOU MIGHT NOT HAVE MADE.  I'M JUST TRYING TO FIND OUT WHAT



        11  THOSE DECISIONS MIGHT BE.



        12  A.   THAT'S A GENERAL STATEMENT, AND I'M NOT GOING TO GO



        13  INTO SPECIFICS OF ANY ONE DECISION BECAUSE YOU COULD SIT



        14  HERE ALL NIGHT ON THIS.



        15  Q.   I DON'T THINK WE WILL TAKE QUITE THAT LONG.  IN



        16  HINDSIGHT, WOULD YOU HAVE TRIED TO WRITE BROWSING SOFTWARE



        17  ENTIRELY IN JAVA?



        18  A.   YES.



        19  Q.   IN HINDSIGHT, WOULD HAVE YOU DEVELOPED A



        20  COMPONENTIZED BROWSER EARLIER?



        21  A.   NO.



        22  Q.   IN HINDSIGHT, IS THERE A SINGLE CORPORATE ACQUISITION



        23  THAT YOU WOULD NOT HAVE DONE?



        24  A.   MAYBE ONE.



        25  Q.   WHICH ONE?�
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         1  A.   I'M NOT GOING TO TELL YOU.  I--



         2  Q.   MR. BARKSDALE, PLEASE, THERE IS NO QUESTION.



         3  A.   THERE ARE EMPLOYEES WHO ARE WORKING FOR US TODAY--



         4  Q.   I WITHDRAW THE QUESTION.



         5  A.   ALL RIGHT.



         6           MR. WARDEN:  MAY I ASK THE WITNESS BE INSTRUCTED



         7  NOT TO SPEAK WHEN THERE IS NO QUESTION PENDING, YOUR



         8  HONOR?



         9           THE COURT:  WELL, YOU HAVE A TENDENCY TO



        10  INTERRUPT HIM, TOO.  YOU HAVE BOTH BEEN DOING IT FOR THE



        11  LAST FOUR DAYS.  I PREFER IT IF YOU WOULDN'T.



        12           MR. WARDEN:  I WOULD PREFER NOT TO INTERRUPT THE



        13  WITNESS, TOO, AND I BELIEVE WHEN I HAVE DONE SO IT HAS



        14  BEEN IN THE BELIEF THAT HE HAS FINISHED, AND I HAVE



        15  APOLOGIZED ON THE OCCASIONS WHEN I HAVE DONE SO.



        16           THE COURT:  WHAT'S YOUR NEXT QUESTION?



        17           MR. WARDEN:  THANK YOU, YOUR HONOR.



        18  BY MR. WARDEN:



        19  Q.   IN HINDSIGHT, WOULD YOU HAVE CHARGED LOWER PRICES



        20  WHEN YOU HAD 85 OR 90 PERCENT OF THE SALES OF BROWSER



        21  SOFTWARE?



        22  A.   NO, I DON'T THINK SO.



        23  Q.   IN HINDSIGHT, WOULD YOU HAVE PUT LESS EMPHASIS ON



        24  DEVELOPING SERVER SOFTWARE PRODUCTS IN 1995 AND 1996?



        25  A.   LESS EMPHASIS ON SERVER PRODUCTS IN--�
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         1  Q.   YES.



         2  A.   I DON'T KNOW.



         3  Q.   IN HINDSIGHT, WOULD YOU HAVE HIRED RICK SHELL?



         4  A.   YES.



         5  Q.   IN HINDSIGHT, WOULD YOU HAVE DISMISSED HIM MORE



         6  QUICKLY?



         7  A.   I DON'T BELIEVE I HAVE SAID I HAVE DISMISSED RICK



         8  SHELL.



         9  Q.   OKAY.  WOULD YOU HAVE BEEN HAPPY HAD HE LEFT THE



        10  COUNTRY--COMPANY, SOONER?



        11  A.   NO, SIR.



        12  Q.   IN HINDSIGHT, WOULD YOU HAVE DEVOTED MORE THAN 50



        13  PEOPLE TO SALES EFFORTS?



        14  A.   MORE THAN 50?  I HAVE GOT MORE THAN 500.



        15  Q.   HOW ABOUT THE OEM CHANNEL?



        16  A.   YOU MEAN ON THE OEM CHANNEL SPECIFICALLY?



        17  Q.   YES.



        18  A.   NO, I DON'T THINK I WOULD HAVE.  I THINK THAT WAS



        19  ABOUT RIGHT STAFFING THEN AND NOW.



        20  Q.   IS IT YOUR BELIEF THAT MICROSOFT NETWORK, WHICH, ON



        21  DOWN IN THIS PARAGRAPH 239, YOU SAY DID NOT SUCCEED, DO



        22  YOU BELIEVE THAT IT DID NOT SUCCEED, IN PART, BECAUSE IT



        23  DID NOT PROVIDE WHAT COMPUTER USERS WANTED?



        24  A.   I THINK IT'S A GENERAL STATEMENT IN THE EARLY DAYS OF



        25  MSN IT DID NOT SUCCEED BECAUSE IT DID NOT PROVIDE WHAT�
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         1  INTERNET USERS WANTED, WHICH WOULD CERTAINLY NOT BE ALL



         2  COMPUTERS.



         3  Q.   FINE.  I WILL ACCEPT THAT.  YOU DO BELIEVE THAT.



         4  A.   I THINK THAT WOULD BE THE GENERAL WISDOM.



         5  Q.   AND THAT'S DESPITE ITS PLACEMENT ON THE DESKTOP AND



         6  THE HUNDREDS OF MILLIONS OF DOLLARS MICROSOFT SPENT



         7  DEVELOPING AND MARKETING; ISN'T THAT CORRECT?



         8  A.   BECAUSE IT WASN'T AN OPEN TECHNOLOGY, AND INTERNET



         9  USERS DEMAND OPEN TECHNOLOGIES, SO THEY WEREN'T GOING TO



        10  USE MSN.



        11  Q.   YOU COULD VIEW IT WITH WINDOWS, COULDN'T YOU?



        12  A.   BUT IT WAS STILL A PROPRIETARY TECHNOLOGY.  YOU



        13  COULDN'T VIEW IT WITH A REGULAR BROWSER BECAUSE IT WAS



        14  PROPRIETARY EXCLUSIVE DISPLAY IN VIEWERS.  THAT WAS THE



        15  CONVERSATION OF JUNE THE 21ST.



        16  Q.   YOU COULD VIEW IT WITH WINDOWS?



        17  A.   THAT WOULD NOT BE AN EXACTLY ACCURATE STATEMENT.  YOU



        18  WOULD VIEW IT WITH SOME COMPONENT OF WINDOWS THAT WAS AN



        19  INTERFACE, I BELIEVE.



        20  Q.   OKAY.  THAT'S FINE, AND WINDOWS, I BELIEVE YOU SAID,



        21  IS INSTALLED ON 90 PERCENT OR SO OF INTEL-BASED PC'S?



        22  A.   INTERNET USERS WANT A LOT MORE THAN WHAT THEY WERE



        23  OFFERING WITH A VERY LIMITED VIEWING CAPABILITY OF



        24  WINDOWS; THEREFORE, THEY DIDN'T TAKE TO IT.  NOW THAT



        25  MICROSOFT NETWORK IS OPEN TO INTERNET TECHNOLOGIES AND�
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         1  ALLOWED YOU TO VIEW ALL OF THE WORLD WIDE WEB, WHERE MSN



         2  IS MORE OF AN INTERNET SERVICE PROVIDER LIKE AOL, I



         3  BELIEVE IT'S DOING MUCH BETTER BECAUSE IT'S NOT AN OPEN



         4  NETWORK, I BELIEVE.



         5  Q.   HOW MANY SUBSCRIBERS DID MSN HAVE BEFORE THE DEAL



         6  WITH AOL?



         7  A.   I THINK IT WOULD BE MORE THAN A MILLION AND LESS THAN



         8  TWO AND A HALF MILLION.



         9  Q.   GOING TO PARAGRAPH 250, WHICH BEGINS AT THE BOTTOM OF



        10  PAGE 124 AND CONTINUES TO THE NEXT PAGE, 125, MY QUESTION



        11  IS WITH RESPECT TO THE LAST SENTENCE OF THE PARAGRAPH ON



        12  125.



        13  A.   YES.



        14  Q.   WHAT DO YOU MEAN BY THAT, BY WHAT YOU SAY IN THAT



        15  SENTENCE?



        16  A.   WELL, ONE OF THE CLAIMS IS THAT MICROSOFT, BY



        17  INTEGRATING THE BROWSER INTO WINDOWS 98, IS ABLE TO DO



        18  CERTAIN FUNCTIONS THAT YOU COULD NOT HAVE DONE WERE IT



        19  SEPARATED.  AND I'M JUST TAKING ISSUE WITH THAT, THAT I



        20  BELIEVE, AND I THINK MOST TECHNICIANS BELIEVE, THAT THE



        21  ABILITY TO SUCH THINGS AS CRUISE AND VIEW YOUR OWN



        22  INTERNAL FILES, THE ABILITY TO PROVIDE UNDER GRAPHICAL



        23  USER INTERFACE FOR THE OPERATING SYSTEM, THE ABILITY TO GO



        24  OUT ON THE INTERNET, THE ABILITY TO COLLECT AND TABULARIZE



        25  THINGS, THE ABILITY TO KEEP LISTS, ALL OF THOSE THINGS YOU�
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         1  COULD DO WITH THE PRODUCT BEING SEPARATE.  AND THEY HAVE



         2  CHOSEN TO INTEGRATE IT IN THE MANUFACTURING PROCESS AS



         3  OPPOSED TO BUNDLING IT IN THE DISTRIBUTION PROCESS, AND



         4  THAT, I THINK, IS A MISTAKE.



         5  Q.   OKAY.  YOU'RE SAYING THEY COULD BE PERFORMED



         6  SEPARATELY RATHER THAN BY AN INTEGRATED PRODUCT; IS THAT



         7  CORRECT?



         8  A.   HAVE BEEN UP UNTIL NOW.



         9  Q.   AND THE MERE FACT THAT THEY COULD BE PERFORMED BY TWO



        10  SEPARATE FUNCTIONS DEPRIVES THE CREATOR OF THE INTEGRATED



        11  PRODUCT OF ANY JUSTIFICATION FOR ITS CREATION; IS THAT



        12  YOUR TESTIMONY?



        13  A.   I'M SAYING BECAUSE THE CREATOR IS A MONOPOLIST WHO IS



        14  ABLE TO FORCE PEOPLE TO DO IT THAT WAY, THE REST OF US WHO



        15  MIGHT WANT TO COMPETE IN SOME OF THESE SPACES NEED A



        16  LITTLE RELIEF.  SO, MY ARGUMENT IS THE COURT SHOULD NOT



        17  ASSUME THAT BECAUSE THEY BUILT IT THAT WAY, THAT'S THE



        18  ONLY WAY TO BUILD IT.  THAT'S LIKE COMBINING BLUE KOOL-AID



        19  AND YELLOW KOOL-AID AND MAKING GREEN KOOL-AID.  YES, IT'S



        20  A COMBINED PRODUCT, BUT YOU COULD GO BACK AND START OVER



        21  AGAIN AND MAKE THEM VERY SEPARATE PRODUCTS.



        22           I'M TAKING ISSUE WITH THE GENERAL SORT OF



        23  ARGUMENT THAT MICROSOFT MAKES OF BECAUSE WE DID THIS, IT'S



        24  BECAUSE OUR USERS LIKE IT.  I THINK YOU COULD HAVE THE



        25  USERS LIKE IT JUST AS WELL WITHOUT DOING THAT.�
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         1  Q.   YOU'RE SAYING THERE IS NO TECHNICAL BENEFIT TO THE



         2  INTEGRATION; IS THAT CORRECT?



         3  A.   NO, SIR.



         4  Q.   YOU'RE NOT SAYING THAT?



         5  A.   NO, I AM SAYING THERE IS NO TECHNICAL BENEFIT.



         6  Q.   AND NO CONSUMER BENEFIT; IS THAT YOUR TESTIMONY?



         7  A.   I'M SAYING THE CONSUMER BENEFIT COULD BE ACHIEVED IN



         8  ANOTHER WAY.  LIKE IN THE TELEPHONE SYSTEM, THERE WAS A



         9  TIME IT WAS ALL INTEGRATED, AND THAT WAS TO THE CONSUMER'S



        10  BENEFIT.  WHEN IT WAS SEPARATED, WE HAD TO FIND ANOTHER



        11  WAY, BUT LOW PRICES AND OTHER THINGS CAUSED IT TO BE TO



        12  THE CONSUMERS' BENEFIT TODAY.  YOU COULD ARGUE IN THIS



        13  CASE THAT SAME SORT OF ARGUMENT, LIKE AT&T USED TO SAY, IF



        14  YOU SEPARATE THE TELEPHONE SYSTEM, YOU DESTROY THE



        15  TECHNOLOGY; IT WON'T WORK.  IT'S BEEN PROVEN VERY WRONG,



        16  VERY SHALLOW.



        17  Q.   MICROSOFT HASN'T ARGUED THAT IF YOU ELIMINATE A



        18  BROWSING FUNCTIONALITY FROM THE OPERATING SYSTEM THAT



        19  WOULD DESTROY OPERATING SYSTEMS IN GENERAL, HAS IT?



        20  A.   I THINK IT'S ARGUED ON WINDOWS 98, ITS CURRENT



        21  RELEASED PRODUCT, WHICH IS THE ONE NOW SELLING IN RETAIL



        22  STORES BY THE LARGEST QUANTITY, THEY'RE ARGUING THAT THE



        23  TWO ARE INTEGRATED BECAUSE THAT IS A TECHNICALLY SUPERIOR



        24  SOLUTION.  IT'S TO A USER'S BENEFIT TO BE INTEGRATED THAT



        25  WAY.  AND MY ONLY POINT IS IT'S REALLY NOT.  IT'S REALLY�
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         1  TO EXCLUDE PEOPLE LIKE MY COMPANY BECAUSE THERE REALLY



         2  AREN'T DEMONSTRABLE ONE-OFF UNIQUE ADVANTAGES TO



         3  INTEGRATING THIS PRODUCT.



         4  Q.   DO YOU HAVE THE TECHNICAL KNOWLEDGE TO MAKE THAT



         5  JUDGMENT THAT THERE IS NO TECHNICAL BENEFIT TO THE



         6  INTEGRATION?



         7  A.   I HAVE PEOPLE WHO WORK FOR ME WHO HAVE THAT KNOWLEDGE



         8  AND WHO ASSURE ME THAT IT IS CORRECT.



         9  Q.   AND ALL OF THEM HAVE TAKEN THE UNIFORM POSITION TO



        10  THAT EFFECT?



        11  A.   NO, SIR.  THEY HAVE NOT ALL TAKEN THE UNIFORM



        12  POSITION THAT THE SUN IS GOING TO COME UP TOMORROW.



        13  Q.   WHO IS DARREN MAY?



        14  A.   DARREN MAY IS A YOUNG MAN WHO WORKED, I BELIEVE, IN



        15  OUR I-S GROUP FOR--HE ADMINISTERED SOME OF OUR LOCAL AREA



        16  NETWORK FUNCTIONS.  HE'S NO LONGER WITH US.  HE'S BEEN



        17  WITH US FOR A WHILE.



        18  Q.   WAS HE A SENIOR PROGRAM MANAGER?



        19  A.   HE MAY HAVE BEEN DOING THAT FUNCTION OF LAN



        20  ADMINISTRATION, AS I MENTIONED.  THAT MAY HAVE BEEN HIS



        21  TITLE.  HE DIDN'T DEVELOP COMPUTER PROGRAMS, IF THAT'S



        22  WHAT IT IMPLIES.



        23  Q.   I WOULD LIKE TO SHOW YOU AN E-MAIL PREPARED BY



        24  MR. MAY IN AUGUST 1996 IN HTML THAT I HAVE HAD MARKED AS



        25  DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT 64, TOGETHER WITH OUR COLOR�
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         1  RECONSTRUCTION OF IT.



         2           MR. WARDEN:  AND THE RECONSTRUCTION, YOUR HONOR,



         3  IS A RENDERING IN HTML OF THE DOCUMENT BEARING NETSCAPE



         4  BATES NUMBER 664443 AND 444.  IN OTHER WORDS, WHEN YOU USE



         5  THE SOURCE INFORMATION IN THE TYPED VERSION AND CONVERT IT



         6  BACK TO HTML, YOU GET WHAT IS ON THE THIRD PAGE, WHICH IS



         7  THE WAY THIS WOULD HAVE APPEARED ON A COMPUTER.



         8  BY MR. WARDEN:



         9  Q.   WAS MY STATEMENT TO THE COURT ROUGHLY CORRECT,



        10  MR. BARKSDALE, ABOUT HOW YOU GO FROM THE TYPED PAGES TO



        11  THE GRAPHIC PAGE?



        12  A.   YES, THAT WOULD BE CORRECT.



        13  Q.   HAVE YOU SEEN THIS DOCUMENT BEFORE, EITHER IN THE



        14  TYPED FORM OR THE HTML FORM?



        15  A.   NO, SIR.  THIS COMES FROM A DISCUSSION GROUP FOR



        16  EMPLOYEES FOR VENTING GRIEVANCES CALLED "BAD ATTITUDE" AND



        17  ITS SISTER CALLED "REALLY BAD ATTITUDE," WHICH IS SORT OF



        18  AN ELECTRONIC WATERCOOLER WHERE THEY TRY TO OUTFLAME EACH



        19  OTHER ON VARIOUS THINGS.  AND WE ALLOWED THEM TO DO IT



        20  YEARS AGO AS A WAY OF VENTING AFTER A LONG DAY OF WORK AND



        21  A LOT OF FRUSTRATIONS, WHICH I BELIEVE IS WHERE THIS COMES



        22  FROM.  IT WAS NOT POSTED ON OUR WEB SITE.



        23  Q.   OH, NO, IT WAS PRODUCED TO US BY YOUR COUNSEL IN THE



        24  COURSE OF DISCOVERY.  WE DIDN'T TAKE IT OFF THE WEB SITE.



        25  THE TYPED VERSION WAS PRODUCED.�
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         1  A.   I'M SAYING, THIS WAS NOT DISPLAYED TO OUR CUSTOMERS.



         2  IT WAS NOT SENT TO MANAGEMENT.  IT WAS INTERNAL GROUP OF A



         3  FEW PEOPLE WHO, I GUESS, GET RELEASE OUT OF SAYING BAD



         4  THINGS ABOUT THEIR COMPANY AND THEIR PRODUCTS FROM TIME TO



         5  TIME.  THEY GROUSE ABOUT CAFETERIA FOOD TO EVERYTHING



         6  ELSE.



         7           MR. WARDEN:  YOUR HONOR, I OFFER DEFENDANT'S 64,



         8  WHICH SPEAKS FOR ITSELF.



         9           MR. BOIES:  YOUR HONOR, I HAVE NO OBJECTION TO



        10  THE FIRST TWO PAGES OF DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT 64.  I OBJECT



        11  TO THE THIRD PAGE ON FOUNDATION GROUNDS.



        12           THE COURT:  ON WHAT GROUNDS?



        13           MR. BOIES:  FOUNDATION GROUNDS.  MR. WARDEN'S



        14  STATEMENT TO THE COURT OF THE AUTHOR, HE IS NOT SUBJECT TO



        15  CROSS-EXAMINATION.  AND I THINK WHOEVER PREPARED THIS, IF



        16  IT'S GOING TO COME IN, I THINK THE RELEVANCE IS EXTREMELY



        17  MARGINAL, BUT IF IT'S GOING TO COME IN, I THINK IT OUGHT



        18  TO COME IN WITH THE PERSON WHO PREPARED IT SUBJECT TO AT



        19  LEAST SOME QUESTIONING.



        20           THE COURT:  I WILL ADMIT IT SUBJECT TO THE MOTION



        21  TO STRIKE.



        22           MR. WARDEN:  THANK YOU, YOUR HONOR.  I BELIEVE I



        23  ESTABLISHED THROUGH THE WITNESS THAT MY EXPLANATION WAS



        24  ROUGHLY CORRECT.



        25           MAY I HAVE JUST A MOMENT, PLEASE, YOUR HONOR?�
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         1           (PAUSE.)



         2  BY MR. WARDEN:



         3  Q.   DID NETSCAPE MAKE VAPORWARE ANNOUNCEMENTS,



         4  MR. BARKSDALE?



         5  A.   NO, WE DID NOT.



         6  Q.   IS NAVIGATOR FASTER THAN A DOG WITH NO LEGS IF THE



         7  DOG IS UP TO ITS WASTE IN "TRECKLE," AND DEAD?



         8           THE COURT:  TREACLE IS THE WORD.



         9           MR. WARDEN:  I'M FORTUNATE I HAD BOTH YOU AND



        10  MR. BARKSDALE HERE TO GET MY PRONUNCIATIONS STRAIGHT.



        11           YOUR HONOR, I HAVE NO FURTHER QUESTIONS AT THIS



        12  TIME.  I ASK THAT THE WITNESS REMAIN SUBJECT TO RECALL,



        13  DEPENDING ON THE RESOLUTION BY THE COURT OR OTHERWISE BY



        14  AGREEMENT OF THE MOTION WE FILED THIS MORNING, WHICH AGAIN



        15  I DON'T HAVE ANY INTENTION OF ARGUING AT THIS TIME, BUT



        16  THE MOTION ABOUT DOCUMENT PRODUCTION.  THANK YOU, YOUR



        17  HONOR.



        18           THE COURT:  ALL RIGHT.  I'M NOT GOING TO HAVE YOU



        19  START YOUR REDIRECT THIS AFTERNOON, UNLESS YOU INSIST ON



        20  IT, MR. BOIES.



        21           MR. BOIES:  I WOULD NEVER INSIST AT THIS HOUR,



        22  YOUR HONOR.



        23           THE COURT:  DO YOU HAVE ANY IDEA HOW LONG YOU



        24  WILL BE ON REDIRECT?



        25           MR. BOIES:  I WILL CERTAINLY FINISH TOMORROW.  I�
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         1  SUSPECT IT WILL BE EITHER ABOUT AT THE LUNCHEON RECESS OR



         2  SHORTLY AFTER WE RESUME IN THE AFTERNOON.



         3           THE COURT:  ALL RIGHT.  THEN I WILL TRY TO



         4  ANTICIPATE YOUR RECROSS.



         5           MR. WARDEN:  I'M SURE I WILL HAVE SOME.  I HOPE



         6  IT'S VERY SHORT, BUT, OF COURSE, I DON'T KNOW UNTIL I HEAR



         7  THE REDIRECT.



         8           THE COURT:  ALL RIGHT.  THAT WILL CONCLUDE



         9  PROCEEDINGS FOR THIS AFTERNOON.  YOU ARE EXCUSED,



        10  MR. BARKSDALE, WE WILL SEE YOU BACK HERE TOMORROW MORNING.



        11           (WHEREUPON, AT 4:32 P.M., THE HEARING WAS



        12  ADJOURNED UNTIL 10:00 A.M., THE FOLLOWING DAY.)
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         1                   CERTIFICATE OF REPORTER



         2



         3           I, DAVID A. KASDAN, RPR, COURT REPORTER, DO



         4  HEREBY TESTIFY THAT THE FOREGOING PROCEEDINGS WERE



         5  STENOGRAPHICALLY RECORDED BY ME AND THEREAFTER REDUCED TO



         6  TYPEWRITTEN FORM BY COMPUTER-ASSISTED TRANSCRIPTION UNDER



         7  MY DIRECTION AND SUPERVISION; AND THAT THE FOREGOING



         8  TRANSCRIPT IS A TRUE RECORD AND ACCURATE RECORD OF THE



         9  PROCEEDINGS.



        10           I FURTHER CERTIFY THAT I AM NEITHER COUNSEL FOR,



        11  RELATED TO, NOR EMPLOYED BY ANY OF THE PARTIES TO THIS



        12  ACTION IN THIS PROCEEDING, NOR FINANCIALLY OR OTHERWISE



        13  INTERESTED IN THE OUTCOME OF THIS LITIGATION.



        14

                                    ______________________

        15                          DAVID A. KASDAN
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